LANCASTER

CITY COUNCIL

Promoting City, Coast & Countryside

Committee:  CABINET

Date: TUESDAY, 9 OCTOBER 2012
Venue: MORECAMBE TOWN HALL
Time: 10.00 A.M.

AGENDA
1. Apologies

2. Minutes

To receive as a correct record the minutes of Cabinet held on Tuesday, 4 September
2012 (previously circulated).

3. Iltems of Urgent Business Authorised by the Leader

To consider any such items authorised by the Leader and to consider where in the
agenda the item(s) are to be considered.

4, Declarations of Interest

To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this Agenda.

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the Localism Act 2011, they are required
to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests which have not already been declared in
the Council’s Register of Interests. (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting).

Whilst not a legal requirement, in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 10 and in the
interests of clarity and transparency, Members should declare any disclosable pecuniary
interests which they have already declared in the Register, at this point in the meeting.

In accordance with Part B Section 2 of the Code Of Conduct, Members are required to
declare the existence and nature of any other interests as defined in paragraphs 8(1) or
9(2) of the Code of Conduct.

5. Public Speaking
To consider any such requests received in accordance with the approved procedure.
Reports from Overview and Scrutiny
None
Reports

6. Museums Service (Pages 1 - 10)

(Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Sands)



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Report of the Head of Community Engagement

Performance Reward Grant Funding (Pages 11 - 19)

(Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Blamire)
Report of the Head of Community Engagement

Storey Creative Industries Centre (Pages 20 - 21)

(Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Hanson)
Report of the Head of Resources

Service Level Agreement Storey Gallery (Pages 22 - 24)

(Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Sands)
Report of the Head of Community Engagement

Corporate Plan 2012-15 - Half Yearly Monitoring at September 2012 (Pages 25 - 36)
(Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Blamire)
Report of the Head of Community Engagement

Budget and Planning Process 2013/14 (Pages 37 - 46)

(Cabinet Members with Special Responsibility Councillors Blamire & Bryning)
Report of the Head of Resources

Morecambe Festival Market (Pages 47 - 64)

(Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Barry)
Report of the Head of Environmental Services

Waste Collection - Cost Sharing (Pages 65 - 69)

(Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Smith)
Report of the Head of Environmental Services

Council Housing - Rota Painting (Pages 70 - 75)

(Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Smith)
Report of the Head of Environmental Services

Exclusion of the Press and Public

Members are asked whether they need to declare any further declarations of interest
regarding the exempt reports.



16.

Cabinet is recommended to pass the following recommendation in relation to the following
items:-

“That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the press
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business, on the
grounds that they could involve the possible disclosure of exempt information as defined
in paragraph 12 of Schedule 12A of that Act.”

Members are reminded that, whilst the following items have been marked as exempt, it is
for the Council itself to decide whether or not to consider each of them in private or in
public. In making the decision, Members should consider the relevant paragraph of
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, and should balance the interests of
individuals or the Council itself in having access to information. In considering their
discretion Members should also be mindful of the advice of Council Officers.

Community Development Initiative (Pages 76 - 81)
(Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Blamire)

Report of the Head of Community Engagement

ADMINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMENTS

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Membership

Councillors Eileen Blamire (Chairman), Janice Hanson (Vice-Chairman), Jon Barry,
Abbott Bryning, Tim Hamilton-Cox, Karen Leytham, Ron Sands and David Smith

Queries regarding this Agenda

Please contact Liz Bateson, Democratic Services - telephone (01524) 582047, or email
ebateson@lancaster.gov.uk.

Apologies

Please contact Members’ Secretary, telephone 582170, or alternatively email
memberservices@lancaster.gov.uk.

MARK CULLINAN,
CHIEF EXECUTIVE,
TOWN HALL,
DALTON SQUARE,
LANCASTER LA1 1PJ

Published on Thursday, 27 September, 2012.



Agenda ltem 6 Page 1

CABINET

Museums Service
9 October 2012

Report of Head of Community Engagement

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To update members on the review of the Museums Partnership agreement with Lancashire
County Council and agree future management responsibilities.

Key Decision Non- Key Decision Referral from Cabinet
Member

Date Included in Forward Plan |J| July 2012

This report is public

RECOMMENDATIONS OF COUNCILLOR SANDS

(1) That Option 1 — the development of an enhanced partnership agreement
with Lancashire County Council is pursued.

(2) That the agreement be initially for a three year period in order to enable
the new governance approach to take effect.

(3) That the Chief Executive be delegated authority to establish the
appropriate governance arrangements set out in the report.

1.0 Introduction

1.1 The Museums Service in Lancaster has, since 2003, been the subject of a
Partnership Agreement between Lancashire County Council and Lancaster
City Council. The establishment of the Museums Service Partnership
Agreement came about as a result of Lancaster City Council budget
deliberations for 2003/04.

1.2 Lancaster City Council funds the management of the City, Maritime and
Cottage museums in Lancaster. Two others, not funded by the City Council,
are Lancaster Castle and the Judges' Lodgings Museum.

1.3 The City Council own and have maintenance responsibilities for Lancaster
City Museum, Lancaster Maritime Museum and the Cottage Museum. All the
collections prior to the Museums agreement and those collected on behalf of
the City after that agreement, belong to Lancaster City Council. All Museum
staff that previously worked for Lancaster City Council were transferred to
Lancashire County Council in April 2003.



1.4

1.5

(1)

(2)

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

Page 2

Cabinet, at its meeting on 19 January 2010, resolved that:

Lancashire County Council be issued with 24 months notice to terminate the
Museums Partnership Agreement from 1 April 2010 (i.e. to be implemented
after 31 March 2012), and that officers of the City Council, over the ensuing
period, examine options of future service provision, whilst examining cost
savings. (Min No 113 refers).

Cabinet, at a further meeting on the 14 February 2012, resolved that:

That the City Council continues with the existing partnership agreement with
Lancashire County Council for a further year in order to continue ongoing
dialogue aimed at developing a new shared service arrangement for the
Museums service in the district.

That further reports are brought back to members during 2012/13 presenting
more detailed information that will form the basis of the new arrangements
prior to their implementation.

Proposal details

Since the Cabinet meeting in February officers from the City Council have
continued to meet with County Council officers to review the effectiveness of
the partnership and understand the allocation of costs. In addition, a specialist
museums consultancy Robert M Aitken Museum Design has continued to
provide additional specialist advice.

In taking forward negotiations with Lancashire County Council, the main aim
of the work was to provide an indication of how the current partnership could
be improved in order to bring it more in line with modern thinking, attract
more visitors and make a positive contribution to the cultural offer and
economy of Lancaster District.

The CHS clearly set out Lancaster's potential as a visitor destination based
on its wealth of heritage and cultural (arts) offerings. It also highlighted the
number of challenges that needed to be met and delivered to meet this
vision. There are a number of significant opportunities for the district over the
next few years. The proposed development of the Canal Corridor North site,
Lancaster Castle and Luneside East will create a new east-west emphasis to
the city centre. This means that the City Museum and the Maritime Museum
will occupy increasingly important locations as key elements of a much
bigger cultural and heritage offer in Lancaster as envisaged in the Cultural
Heritage Strategy. The Cultural Heritage Strategy also makes a series of
recommendations around marketing of the city and its attractions and
festivals. It is imperative that the future of these, and other key buildings and
areas such as the Storey CIC, Market Square and Sun Street, are
considered in this light if the benefits of these significant investments are to
be maximised.

The way forward for the City’'s museums must been seen against this
background: both the City and the County must move forward together,
albeit with a revised arrangement — but in the spirit of partnership and mutual
benefit.



2.5

2.6

Page 3

A number of options have been considered during the period of discussions
some in more detail than others. Each option raises issues and associated
risks, some of which may be easier to deal with than others. Options which
essentially represented closure or disposal to the County or third parties
create significantly more problems than they present realistic, sustainable
solutions and were discounted quite early on in the process.

The main aim of the work was to provide an indication of how the current
partnership could be improved in order to bring it more in line with modern
thinking, attract more visitors and make a positive contribution to the cultural
offer and economy of Lancaster District with a particular emphasis on
maximising value for money for both the City and the County.

The two options given detailed consideration and presented in this report are:

Option 1  Enhancing the existing partnership arrangements with Lancashire

County Council or

Option 2  Repatriating the museums service back to the City Council.

2.7

2.8

2.9

Option 1 - Enhanced Partnership with Lancashire County Council

This option proposes a revised enhanced partnership arrangement
between the City and County Council. It proposes that the existing
arrangements for the management of the City, Maritime and Cottage
Museums in Lancaster on behalf of the City Council could be both improved
and delivered at a reduced cost. The County Council have agreed that the
present sum contributed annually by the City Council could now be reduced
by £50,000 (to £500,000 a year) as a result of the savings made in the
overall operating costs of the County’s Museum Service due to restructuring
and the creation of a Cultural Services ‘block’.

This option proposes that an appropriate governing body (a Joint Museums
Service Governance Group) involving elected members is needed to ensure
“the alignment of the museums operations within the district (both City and
County) with the priorities of both authorities”. Option 1 recommends that a
coordinated, strategic approach is delivered for the operation of the
museums in the Lancaster District via a Joint Museums Service Governance
Group comprising an appropriate number of councillors from both City and
County. The proposed structure is set out in Appendix A.

There currently exists a productive and improving management approach to
the partnership and officers have worked to ensure greater integration is
provided within the partnership. It is envisaged that operational managers
from County would contribute to business planning in particular at
Williamson Park and Platform and additionally bring a new approach to
delivering services to community facilities throughout the district (outreach
work). There are possibilities to work with sport and physical activity officers
who have built up a range of community / club / school contacts in recent
years which in turn should help raise the profile of all three museums and
enhance the cultural offer district wide. Opportunities exist to maximise
partnership work with various arts organisations and such opportunities
would be coordinated by City Council officers. Possibilities of linking outputs



2.10

2.1

2.12

Page 4

delivered by the museums which are not currently recognised such as
improved health (particularly mental health), improved education programme
(links to ever expanding educational offers at Williamson Park which in turn
generates revenue) and increased users of cultural facilities from hard to
reach groups would be identified and reported.

The enhanced partnership would create the forum for officers to co-ordinate
the development of the shared business plan and strategic plan for
consideration by the Governance Group, which itself would not have
decision making powers, as these would be subject to the normal processes
of the two authorities. The Group would therefore advise their respective
authorities on the operation of the museums and also on proposed
development plans. Budgets would also continue to be agreed by the
respective councils under their usual processes, but informed by the
agreed ambitions of the Group, if accepted by the respective authorities.

If implemented and maintained — this option would give the City a greater
involvement in the future of its museums at both member and officer level and
the ability to influence and integrate the museums offer within the wider
cultural offering of the district and wider region.

For the reasons set out in Paragraph 2.3, it is recommended that this
enhanced agreement be initially for a period of three years to assess:

a) Whether the revised arrangements are delivering the intended benefits and

offering a stronger contribution to the cultural offer and economy of the district
and wider region and

b) The wider context in which the museums service would be offering including

progress being made on the key initiatives described above.

Should option one be the preferred option an opportunity is created to reinvest some
of the savings identified in to the enhanced partnership. A 50% assumption for
reinvestment (£25k) could be allocated to areas most in need such as introducing
new signs, banners to frontage of buildings and most importantly providing the
opportunity for managers to improve exhibition displays as appropriate.

2.13

If this option is pursued the City council needs to develop clear negotiating
positions particularly in the key areas of:

Creating a vision for the delivery of the City’s heritage.

Management and governance, including the management of the contract by
the City

Value for money considerations and their demonstration

Benchmarking and — crucially — the creation of performance indicators
triggering either additional or reduced payments by the City to the County

Proper reporting arrangements by the County to the City on agreed
benchmarks and performance indicators

The creation and delivery of capital investment strategies by both the
City and the County



2.14

2..15

2.16

217

Page 5

The creation and delivery of commercial opportunities that are in the
City’s interest, including the City Museum’s basement and potential catering
and retail operations.

Option 2 - Repatriation of the Museums Service

This option proposes that all the functions are managed in-house by the
City, with four areas (specialist repair and restoration, specialist advice on
object handling, the design and delivery of exhibitions and the upgrade of
the permanent collections) being offered for tender by the City under its
usual procurement procedures and practices to the County and, if thought
necessary, to independent third parties.

This re-allocation of responsibilities would give the City freedom to develop
the museums as it sees fit, with the County acting as a third party
contractor for defined services, at an agreed fee, possibly in competition
with other bodies or private contractors for services such as exhibition design
and the upgrading of the permanent exhibits.

Following a transfer, the City would:
have direct control over all the public-facing elements of the service

have a management contract with the County for clearly specified and
costed activities that the County will perform under the contract

use staff transferred from the County under TUPE arrangements to manage
the service

place external contracts for activities that it is financially prudent to do so,
under briefs set and managed by the service, and produced under the usual
tendering procedures operated by the City.

This option proposes a Museum Board for the express purpose of
maintaining the museums’ planning cycle and setting all policies for the
future direction of the museums service. The structure of this Board is set out
in Appendix 2.

General issues for consideration

2.18 A key objective of any new arrangements must be to reduce the level of

2.19

subsidy per visitor, thereby increasing value for money. The latter can be
achieved (a) by reducing costs, and/or (b) by increasing visitor numbers.

Bearing in mind that the majority (72%) of the cost of running the service is
either staff- or premises-related, or is concerned directly with point-of-delivery
activities, reducing cost in any meaningful way may give the impression that
the service is retrenching, and might actually reduce the current VM. The
second way — that of increasing visitor numbers — would appear to be the
preferred route. A series of potential Quick Wins, have been identified:

= a new brand and associated marketing campaign

* new signage, including banners to the front-of-house



Page 6

= a new interpretive master plan for the Museum in the context of Lancaster
district as a whole

= a master plan for the new museum offer, including the extension and
basement

= consider the development of the basement by a third party commercial
operator, the activity to be in keeping with both the history of the
building and the spirit of the museum

= install new retail outlet on the Ground Floor of City Museum
3.0 Details of Consultation

A stakeholder event took place on the 26 May 2011and further discussions have
followed

4.0 Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment)

There are two options considered in this report:

1. Negotiate an ‘enhanced’ partnership agreement with Lancashire County
council effective from March 2013 for a period of three years.

This option carries minimal risk, carries on an existing working relationship with a
respected partner and requires that the City needs to do little to implement this
proposal other than establishing appropriate governance arrangements and taking a
more pro-active role in the future strategic direction of the museums service. This
option is consistent with the decision of Cabinet taken on the 14 February 2012
(Para.1.5), offers an immediate financial saving to the council and is
complementary to the city council’s strategic direction to ‘share’ services with
Lancashire County Council.

2 Bring the Museums Service back ‘in house.’

This option brings with it the ability to have direct control over all public facing
elements of the service working flexibly within its own budgets to support the
Council’s cultural heritage economic priority.

Whilst this option may be a desired outcome it would still leave two authorities
running similar services in the district with separate decision making and budgetary
provision, a potential risk of a divergence of opinion going forward and may not offer
the maximum opportunity to generate efficiencies. In addition, there is a risk that the
operation could cost more than it does under the current arrangements if the
projected increases in visitor numbers do not materialise.

Currently the city is at a crucial if not pivotal moment in the development of the city’s
future development. Proposals such as the Castle will become the ‘must see’ visitor
attraction. Although it is being suggested the development will include a strong
museum offer detailed plans have yet to emerge. This, together with developments
such as the Canal Corridor, Square Routes etc. are “once in a generation”
opportunities and the museum offer has a key role to play in maximising the positive
impacts of these. In this context, it is considered to be not the right time to take a long



Page 7

term decision as to the future of the museums service and its contribution toward the
cultural heritage offer of the district.

Officer recommendation

In the light of the above the officer preferred recommendation is Option 1 - Negotiate
an ‘enhanced’ partnership agreement with Lancashire County council effective from
March 2013 for a period of three years.

5 Conclusion

The Museums service has a key role to play in supporting the development of the
Lancaster’s wider cultural offer and in turn the future prosperity of the city centre. The
opportunity for effective involvement by City Council officers with a proven track
record of improving services delivered to the public is appealing. The recent award to
Williamson Park as a quality accredited excellent facility to Visit Britain being a good
recent example of City Council achievements when involved in facility management.
The opportunity to revitalise the partnership and include officers from County within
the business planning process of the City Council can only further a cohesive
approach. This approach coupled with improved governance arrangements can be
delivered within option one and affords the necessary review timescale within three
years to assess performance.

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK

Management of the Museums is an important element of the Council’s priorities of Economic
Regeneration — and is cited within the Corporate Plan ‘An improved future for the district’s
museums is secured’.

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural
Proofing)

Will all be taken into consideration during the development of any new arrangements.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

If option 1 is approved Legal Services would advise and assist in the preparation of the
enhanced partnership agreement.

In the event that option 2 is approved Legal Services would advise and assist in dealing with
any issues arising from devolution from the County Council arrangements including TUPE
issues.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Option 1

The key advantage of this proposal to the Council is that the annual cost of the operation
of its museums is known and fixed at £500,000 a year as at year 1, offering an instant
saving of £50,000 a year, rising to over £54,000 a year if a 2% real year-on-year
increase is assumed. This equates to a total saving over five years of just over
£260,000. Consideration should be given as to whether further savings can be made by
way of a detailed look at the workings of the City, County and Cottage museums (ie, at
the operational level) to effect either further savings or increased income for the financial



Page 8

benefit of the City. This would be investigated further going forward if this option is

selected.

Option 2

The following table is based on assumptions regarding the initial set up costs of £239K
to cover the cost of re-configuring the entrances to the City and Maritime museums,
implementation of new systems, re-training of staff, re-brandings and re-launching the

museums.
purposes of this appraisal.

It has been assumed that these costs would be funded from revenue for the

This option also assumes existing staff are transferred from the County to the City at

current rates.

Initial Set Up Costs
Capital (Assumed to be financed from Revenue)
Revenue

2013/14
£

2014/15
£

2015/16
£

2016/17
£

2017/18
£

Totals
£

68,250
140,490

30,135

68,250
170,625

Total Set Up Costs

208,740

30,135

238,875

Annual Running Costs
Employees
Premises & Transport
Supplies and Services
Conservation, Marketing and Exhibitions

418,833

55,366
147,273
117,694

430,383

56,473
150,219
120,048

442,721

57,602
153,223
122,449

446,790

58,754
156,288
124,898

446,790

59,929
159,413
127,396

2,185,515
288,125
766,416
612,486

Total Expenditure

739,166

757,123

775,995

786,730

793,529

3,852,542

Income (see table below for details)

(197,849)

(225,140)

(242,025)

(254,127)

(260,480)

(1,179,621)

|Net Annual Running Cost

541,317

531,983

533,970

532,603

533,049

2,672,921

|Tota| Annual Cost

750,057

562,118

533,970

532,603

533,049

2,911,796

Cost of Current Annual Contract (2% compound)

559,980

571,180

582,603

594,255

606,140

2,914,158

|Annual Cost / (Saving)

190,077

(9,062)

(48,633)

(61,652)

(73,092)

(2,362)

Cumulative Cost / (Saving)

190,077

181,015

132,382

70,729

(2,362)

The initial investment of £239K would take 5 years to pay back.

The income generation assumptions made in these projections are as follows:

Income Assumptions

2013/14

2014/15

2015/16

2016/17

2017/18

Visitor/User Numbers
Annual Increase in Numbers Assumed

Spend Per Customer

157,380
115.0%

(£1.26)

173,118
10.0%

(£1.30)

186,102
7.5%

(£1.30)

195,407
5.0%

(£1.30)

200,292
2.5%

(£1.30)

Total Income

(£197,849)

(£225,140)

(£242,025)

(£254,127)

(£260,480)

As can be seen from the table above, it is assumed that visitor numbers will increase by
115% in the first year, and a total increase of 140% over the 5 year payback period. In

addition, spend per customer would increase from the current 53p to £1.26.

These

assumptions include removing admission fees, installing a new retail outlet in the City

Museum and having a new interpretive master plan.
materialise then the payback period would be greater.

Clearly, if these increases do not
In fact, anything less than an

increase of 85% in the first 5 years would not achieve any payback as the net running costs
would be the same as the current cost of the operation under the County agreement.




A comparison of the two options is shown in the following table:

Page 9

2013/14
£

2014/15
£

2015/16
£

2016/17
£

201718
£

OPTION 1 : COUNTY PROPOSAL
Annual Saving

Cumulative Saving

(50,000)
(50,000)

(51,000)
(101,000)

(52,020)
(153,020)

(53,060)
(206,080)

(54,122)
(260,202)

OPTION 2 : IN-HOUSE PROPOSAL
Annual Cost / (Saving)

Cumulative Cost / (Saving)

190,077
190,077

(9,062)
181,015

(48,633)
132,382

(61,652)
70,729

(73,092)
(2,362)

Clearly the County proposal will generate greater savings over a 5 year period, and it has
been forecast to take 13 years before the cumulative savings for both options reach the
same level.

In summary, from a financial point of view, the least risk option is Option 1 and this will also
generate the greatest savings over the medium term.

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Human Resources:

Officers from Human Resources have been included within dialogue with County Council
and will prepare definitive implications relating to staff should any variation of the museums

operation be agreed. At this stage it is too early to consider TUPE implications until a clear
way forward has been agreed and staff informed of any changes.

Information Services:

None identified to date.

Property:

The three museums referred to above are owned by Lancaster City Council
Open Spaces:

No implications

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS
The s151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS
The Deputy MO has been consulted and has no further comments.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Robert M Aitken Museum Design - report

Contact Officer: Richard Tulej
Telephone: 01524 582079
E-mail: rtulej@lancaster.gov.uk




Appendix A

Page

10

Lancaster City Council

Corporate Priorities

Lancashire County Council

Stakeholders:
Friends Groups
Users

PCT

Police

ACE

Private Sector

¥ [
City Council Ve \\ Cultural Heritage
Officers —'\ Steering Group /7 Manager
T— City Museum
Maritime Museum
Cottage
Judges Lodgings
Shire Hall at the Castle
Review Agree Business .
T - Tourism
Performance Priorities Planning Regeneration
Heritage
Regular Operational Meetings Wellbeing
Building Management Economic Development
Collections
Public Service
Appendix B

City Members

k4

Museum Board

implements city
heritage strategy

I 3

advises city on
future strategy

oy — = —I County Members

___________ ——— ¥
.
"7~ Gavisory fole ~~~ "] Operations Manager | new post
I_""""“I ____________ 1
 Interest Groups !
1 . | -
! education | - City
| ) ‘i"h“"‘t""t‘_s i directly
: '"nf;?;‘zt?n';” ; manages —
| I -
! commercial | » Maritime
1 ]
»

Cottage

|
museum |
staff |

i



Agenda ltem 7 Page 11

CABINET

Performance Reward Grant Funding
9" October 2012

Report of the Head of Community Engagement

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To seek approval of members for amendments to the allocation of the Performance Reward
Grant funding previously allocated towards the Warm Homes Scheme.

Key Decision Non-Key Decision Referral from Cabinet
Member

Date Included in Forward Plan September 2012

This report is public

RECOMMENDATIONS OF COUNCILLOR EILEEN BLAMIRE

(1) That Cabinet considers the options outlined in this report for the use of
£96,521.00 available capital related Performance Reward Grant.

(2) That any PRG funds allocated to the Affordable Warmth Improvement
Programme are specifically used to support measures to reduce the
level of excess deaths and avoid hospital admissions that are due to
vulnerable people living in cold housing conditions.

(2) That subject to Cabinet’s support for the Affordable Warmth
Improvement Programme, the Home Improvement Agency (HIA) within
Health and Housing be the delivery agent

(3) That the authority to approve any further amendments specific to the
Affordable Warmth Improvement Programme is delegated to the Leader
of the council, ensuring that the council’s responsibilities for PRG are
met.

(4) That the General Fund Capital Programme be updated accordingly

(5) That the Head of Health and Housing be authorised to apply for any
suitable external funding to support the delivery of affordable warmth
related activities, subject to a fit with corporate priorities and Financial
Services confirming that there be no additional call on the City Council’s
finances.

1.0 Introduction
1.1 Following a Cabinet meeting of the 26" July 2011, the Lancaster District Local

Strategic Partnership (LDLSP) was allocated a share of the Performance
Reward Grant (PRG) received from central government for the successful



1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

Page 12

delivery of the first Local Area Agreement (LAA) for Lancashire. The LDLSP
Management Group created a Warm Homes Project which used £100,000 of
capital PRG and £5000 of revenue PRG to attract matched CERT (Carbon
Emissions Reduction Trading) funding from utility companies. This gave the
LDLSP a fund to provide grants for insulating homes in the Lancaster District,
reducing fuel poverty, excess winter deaths and CO2 emissions.

The delivery partner chosen for this activity was the not-for-profit managing
agent Tadea and on 9" September 2011, the Warm Homes Project
commenced with an anticipated end date of 31%' December 2012. During this
period, a Service Level Agreement (SLA) between Lancaster City Council and
Tadea requested that “at least 2000 residents must receive significant virgin
loft insulation, loft top-up insulation and/or cavity wall insulation work by the
end of the Initiative”.

However, since the commencement of the scheme, a large number of
providers have begun to provide free loft insulation and cavity wall insulation
to all customers regardless of their compliance with CERT Requirements.
This has changed the circumstances in which the scheme was operating and
has presented increased opportunities for residents of the Lancaster District
to insulate their properties at no charge.

The prevalence of free insulation schemes has created an opportunity for the
council to use PRG funding to provide additional services which add value to
those currently available to residents of the Lancaster District for which there
is limited provision. The remaining amount of PRG funding available is
£96,521.00 and, as it is not time-limited, can be carried forward into future
years without issue.

The Cabinet meeting of 26th July 2011 supported the recommendation that
“approval for...amendments to [the Warm Homes initiative], is delegated to
the Leader of the Council, as the City Council’s representative on the LDLSP
Management Group”. However, due to the size of funds available, members
are asked to provide approval for a revision to the allocation of the PRG
funds.

Proposal Details

To address the health related impacts associated with cold homes, the Warm
Homes project initiated by the LDLSP had the overarching aim to “provide
grants for insulating homes in the Lancaster district, reducing fuel poverty,
excess winter deaths and CO? emissions”.

In light of these changes, an alternative delivery method is proposed which
addresses the shortfall in existing provisions for vulnerable residents of the
Lancaster District.

a) Evidence for scheme

The health effects of living in cold homes have been highlighted by many
recent reports. Cold homes lead to excess winter deaths, cardiovascular,
respiratory and mental health problems [Marmot Review, 2011]. The excess
winter mortality index figure (the measure of winter deaths compared with
non-winter deaths) is high in Lancaster district; 19.3 compared to national
average of 17 [North Lancs PCT, 2009 most recent figures available]. In



2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

Page 13

addition, the Lancashire Mental Health & Wellbeing Report [Joint Strategic
Needs Assessment, 2011] identified that fuel poverty is increasing inequality
in the county. Wellbeing of older residents is particularly affected and the
report recognises that services need to be improved to ‘make fuel bills less
pressing’.

Recent figures produced by Department of Energy and Climate Change
(2010) demonstrate that 24% of homes (approximately 14,300 households) in
the Lancaster district are in fuel poverty, having to spend more that 10% of
their income on fuel bills. Surrounding areas have even higher rates — 28% of
households in Pendle (15th highest in UK). Rising fuel prices are the No1
concern for people in Britain today [Which? June 2011] and financial worries
have an impact on wellbeing. 48% of people in Morecambe and Heysham,
(low incomes wards), said their homes are too costly to heat [LCC Housing
Needs Survey 2011].

b) Affordable Warmth Improvement Programme

Although home insulation services are now more readily available, the factors
which impact on the warmth efficiency of a home can only be effectively
addressed through undertaking more wide ranging home improvements.

The PRG funding which is available is strictly for capital costs with any
additional costs to be met by alternative means. However, this funding is not
time-limited and can be carried forward into future years without issue.
Therefore, to ensure effective delivery, an alternative scheme to the Warm
Homes scheme must remain efficient and complement existing delivery
arrangements.

The HIA currently work with vulnerable groups and have the capacity to use
the PRG funding to deliver an Affordable Warmth Improvement Programme
without any further revenue costs. This Programme is intended to
complement the existing range of HIA services available to enable elderly or
disabled residents to remain safe, warm and independent in their own homes.

The property improvements provided through the Programme will be
considered appropriate for enhancing a vulnerable resident’'s home with the
aim of improving affordable warmth, preventing fuel poverty and reducing the
number of deaths that are due to vulnerable residents living in cold housing.
Examples of improvements which could be delivered through the Programme
include the provision of secondary glazing, electrical improvements to enable
the installation of heating systems, or enhanced insulation. Further details
concerning how the Affordable Warmth Improvement Programme will operate
are available in Appendix 1.

The proposed Affordable Warmth Improvement Programme will have an
eligibility criterion that will enable the HIA to deliver a service which is over
and above schemes currently available thereby providing an additional level
of assistance to vulnerable residents of the Lancaster District.

c¢) Future funding
Considering the increased importance of the affordable warmth agenda, it is

likely that future opportunities for external funding will arise. To maximise the
financial resources available to the Lancaster district, officers will seek to take



Page 14

advantage of those opportunities which fit with corporate priorities.

3.0

3.1

Details of Consultation

Allocations of the PRG funding have been discussed at the meetings of the

Lancaster District Performance Group, which was set up to oversee the
remaining LDLSP projects during 2012-13 and they are keen to see the PRG
funds used in a manner which meets the original objectives of the warm
homes project.

3.2

In addition, there has been consultation via the Lancaster District Affordable

Warmth Group with the partners working with vulnerable people in the district
to understand current needs and develop potential solutions. The discussions
held in this forum have contributed to the development of the proposals in this

report.
4.0

Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment)

Option 1: The council directs PRG
funding to the HIA to deliver a
Affordable Warmth Improvement
Programme which is supportive of
the original aims of the Warm
Homes scheme

Option 2: Take back the funds to
address other priorities within the
capital programme

Advantages

e Provides tangible benefits for
vulnerable people

e Contributes to the achievement
of one of the Council’'s Corporate
Priorities

e Funds could be delivered as part
of a capital programme through
the HIA utilising their existing
technical staff

e The HIA have many years of
experience delivering similar
home improvement type grants
utilising our directly employed

handypersons and local
approved contractors to carry
improvements for vulnerable
residents

e The council will be able to
redirect the funds to meet
alternative objectives

Disadvantages

e Some officer time required to
administer funds and monitor
progress

e Fund will be wunavailable to
support other initiatives

e The council will have lost an
opportunity to reduce mortality
and help vulnerable groups

increase their resilience to
periods of cold weather
e Council will have reduced

capacity to achieve Health and
Wellbeing success measures




Page 15

Risks

Project outcomes not
delivered - low risk but could
occur due to failure to reach
relevant client groups

Mitigation: The HIA have an
excellent track record of
delivering similar schemes and
have management arrangements
in place to address any issues
which may arise

Dependent on the alternative
use of the funds

The PRG funding has been
provided to support a range of
partnership initiatives. Partners
in the district have been
engaged in the process of
identifying priorities and will
have expectations for the use of
the funds

e Priorities may change
dependent on need — Low risk
but could change the type of
assistance provided by the HIA

o Mitigation: Delegated decision
making to the Leader of the
Council will allow for quick
progress.

5.0 Officer Preferred Option (and comments)

5.1 The officer preferred option is Option 1 as this delivers the original objectives
of the funding and supports Health and Wellbeing Outcomes and Success
Measures in the council’s Corporate Plan.

6.0 Conclusion

6.1 The council can demonstrate its strong commitment to health and wellbeing in
the Lancaster district by directing the available PRG funding towards the
proposed Affordable Warmth Improvement Programme. This will enable the
HIA to offer support to vulnerable residents which is not available elsewhere.
However, these initiatives are complex and amendments to the plans will
certainly be required — by delegating authority to the Leader to approve those
decisions Cabinet will ensure that approval is given in a timely manner

6.2 Through identifying and applying for additional external funding where
opportunities may arise, Cabinet will be able to continue to add value to
affordable warmth related activities operating in the district.

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK

Health and Wellbeing is one of the key priorities within the Corporate Plan 2012-15 including
“continuing work to improve the quality and availability of housing”. In particular, two of the
Plan’s outcomes are to “enhanced quality of life of local residents through access to good
quality housing” and “health and wellbeing improved and mortality rates reduced for
vulnerable people in the district”. Furthermore, the Corporate Plan includes a success
measure of the “number of vulnerable individuals benefiting from Warm Homes initiatives”.
The provision of a Affordable Warmth Improvement Programme will allow Lancaster City
Council to achieve these outcomes and deliver the success measure.

Affordable Warmth is also being considered as a priority in the emerging county wide Health
and well being strategy being developed by the Shadow Health and well being Board and is
also being targeted for intervention by our local clinical commissioning group.




Page 16

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural
Proofing)

The funding available will support the needs of the most vulnerable, improving services
across the district including in rural areas.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no direct legal implications arising as a result of this report other than in relation to
the requirement associated with managing external funds. These requirements are fully
addressed by the council’s agreed arrangements.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The proposal is to use the unallocated £96,521 PRG grant to fund an affordable warmth
improvement project. As stated in the report, these funds are currently unallocated having
previously been awarded to fund the warm homes initiative which has now ceased.

As the funding was provided for capital purposes it cannot be used to cover any revenue
costs, therefore these will have to be met from existing resources. At this stage it is
anticipated that there will only be some staff time required to administer the scheme, which
will be met from existing service budgets.

The actual scheme itself can only cover improvement works in order to qualify as capital
expenditure, therefore any basic repairs will be ineligible.

Should Cabinet approve this option, controls will be put in place to ensure appropriate
accounting treatment.

Alternatively, Cabinet could approve option 2 and this would allow the funds to be used to
progress other new or existing capital investment needs. Cabinet is aware that various
schemes are on hold pending funding becoming available and it is in this context that they
are advised to consider the proposal — it is a question of what is the highest priority.

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Human Resources:

There are no direct implications arising as a result of this report other than some use of
officer time to progress and manage the project

Information Services:

There are no direct implications arising as a result of this report
Property:

There are no direct implications arising as a result of this report
Open Spaces:

There are no direct implications arising as a result of this report




Page 17

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS
The s151 Officer has been consulted and her comments included in the report.

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Daniel Wood

Telephone: 01524 582061
Appendix 1: Overview of Affordable Warmth i E-mail: dwood@lancaster.gov.uk
Improvement Programme Ref: n/a




Page 18

APPENDIX 1: LANCASTER HOME IMPROVEMENT AGENCY (HIA)

Affordable Warmth Improvement Programme

1. Overview

1.1.

1.2.

The Affordable Warmth Improvement Programme will be utilised to undertake
improvements to enhance the thermal efficiency of properties in the Lancaster
district. This will enable elderly or disabled residents to remain safe, warm and
independent in their own homes. It is a last resort form of property
enhancement where all other sources of improvement and funding have been
considered and will compliment the existing range of HIA services.

The measures provided through the Programme will be considered appropriate
for enhancing a vulnerable resident’s home with the aim of improving affordable
warmth, preventing fuel poverty and reducing the number of deaths that are
due to vulnerable residents living in cold housing.

2. Application

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

2.4.

2.5.

2.6.

Property improvements provided through the Programme will be considered
following an assessment by the HIA Caseworker and Housing Technician.

Referrals for assessment by the HIA will be made in the normal manner through
a network of local partners or by the client direct. The HIA already has in place
a well established referral process.

All HIA enquiries are visited by a Caseworker who undertakes an initial
assessment of the clients needs, including a financial assessment, completion
of any relevant application paperwork and verification of the client’s age and
receipt of qualifying benefits. If appropriate the case would then be forwarded
to the HIA Housing Technician to determine the extent of any works required to
the property.

At this stage the Caseworker and Housing Technician will work together to
determine the most appropriate course of action available to assist the client to
meet their individual needs. This may result in one of a number of solutions
including applications for charitable assistance towards the cost of the work, a
referral to the HIA’'s Handyperson Service or advice on re-housing.

If the improvements provided through the Affordable Warmth Improvement
Programme are deemed the only or most appropriate form of assistance
available to assist the applicant and they constitute capital expenditure as
advised by Financial Services the Housing Technician will prepare schedules of
work and assist the client to seek estimates from Safe Trader Approved
contractors. Once a minimum of two reasonable estimates have been obtained
a formal written grant approval is issued to the applicant who will then be
responsible for appointing the lowest priced contractor. The amount of
assistance will be based upon the reasonable cost of carrying out the
necessary works based on the lowest estimate received less any amount the
applicant is considered able to pay.

On completion of the work and receipt of an invoice the Housing Technician will
visit to ensure the works have been completed satisfactorily. The grant
applicant must also be satisfied with the finished works. Once the contractor



2.7.

Page 19

has completed any snagging work the grant is paid direct by the council to the
contractor.

In order to maximise the number of clients that can be assisted with the limited
funds available, the HIA will also give consideration, as an alternative to the
provision of a grant, to purchasing the materials required and completing the
work in-house through the HIA’s existing delivery mechanisms. This will be
decided on a case by case basis with approval of the HIA Manager and
Financial Services and will take into account, the ability of the HIA to complete
the work, current workload, capitalisation and VAT requirements and the
potential savings to be made from completing the work in-house.

3. Eligibility

3.1.

To be eligible for the Affordable Warmth Improvement Programme an applicant
must be an owner-occupier, or a private tenant with responsibility to carry out
the necessary works. They must generally be aged 60 or over, or disabled, and
must always be in receipt of a means tested benefit with savings less than
£6,000.

4. Approvals and payments

41.

The HIA will provide all applicants benefiting from the Affordable Warmth
Improvement Programme with a formal written approval. No work must begin
until written confirmation of the assistance approved has been issued and
received.



Page 20 Agenda Item 8

CABINET

STOREY CREATIVE INDUSTRIES CENTRE
9 OCTOBER 2012

Report of the Head of Resources

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To provide Cabinet with an update on the position regarding the Storey Creative Industries
Centre following the decision of Council on the 12 September 2012

I:I Non-Key Decision |:I Referral from Officer
Date Included in Forward Plan

This report is public

RECOMMENDATION OF THE HEAD OF RESOURCES

(1)
1.0

1.1

2.0

2.1

That the report be noted.
Introduction

Council, at it's meeting on the 12 September 2012, resolved amongst other
things:

- That subject to the outcome of the liquidation process for SCIC Ltd  and
assuming that the head lease be forfeit, or otherwise terminated, Council's
preferred direction for the Storey Institute is to seek to continue operating
as a Creative Industries Centre, without excluding other options, in order
to make the building sustainable and that the Council works productively
with the tenants and other stakeholders, to achieve these ends.

- That officers be authorised to investigate the details of the restrictive
covenant and to develop proposals in support of (2) above

- That it be noted that future decisions regarding the Storey Institute will be
taken by Cabinet, subject to them being in accordance with the direction
set under (2) above and the existing budget framework but that any
decision regarding the status of the building be brought to full Council, for
example, if it were offered for sale.

Report

A meeting took place with the sub-tenants on the 18 September to explain the
Council’s decision and the next steps required.

Information in respect of spaces let is being gathered and draft terms supplied



Page 21

to tenants in readiness for the head lease being returned to the Council

2.2 Until the building is returned to the City Council, the sub-tenants of SCIC Ltd
are continuing to manage the building. However, this situation can only be
managed in the short term (probably not beyond mid-October)

2.3 The Liquidator has confirmed that he agrees to the Council’s proposal to forfeit
the Head lease and arrangements are now being put in place to pursue this
course of action to return the building to the Council’s control.

24 Arrangements have been put in hand to return the VIC to the Storey once it
can be guaranteed that the front doors will remain open.

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK

N/A

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural
Proofing)

N/A
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

None arising directly as a result of this report.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

None arising directly as a result of this report
OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Human Resources:
None arising directly as a result of this report.

Information Services:
None arising directly as a result of this report.

Property:
None arising directly as a result of this report.

Open Spaces:
None arising directly as a result of this report.

DEPUTY SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Section 151 Officer is the report author; there are no further comments to add.

DEPUTY MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS
None arising from this report.

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Nadine Muschamp
Telephone: 01524 (58)2140

Council report and minute — 12 September || E-mail: nmuschamp@lancaster.gov.uk@

2012 Ref: NM/ES/Cttees/Cabinet/09.10.12




Page 22 Agenda ltem 9

CABINET

Service Level Agreement
Storey Gallery 2012 — 2013
9" October 2012

Report of Head of Community Engagement

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To seek members views as to future arrangements regarding the Council’s Service Level
Agreement with the Storey Gallery

Key Decision Non- Key Decision Referral from Cabinet
Member

Date Included in Forward Plan

This report is public

RECOMMENDATIONS OF HEAD OF COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

That following consideration of the findings of the consultant appointed
by the Storey Gallery company to develop an alternative business model
for the company, Cabinet consider whether it wishes to continue its
Service Level Agreement (SLA) with the Gallery company.

1.0 Introduction

1.1 Responsibility for the management of the Storey Gallery (SG) is vested in its
Board of Trustees, the membership and operation of which is laid down by a
constitution of the Storey Gallery.

1.2 Lancaster City Council has an annual Service Level Agreement (SLA) with
the Storey Gallery.

1.3 The Council has made provision within its revenue budget for the payment of
the grant to the SG for the financial year 2012/13 subject to:-

= An agreed and signed SLA.

= Payment of the grant will be given every quarter in advance, based on
submission of an invoice or a claim. A formal activity report is required on a
quarterly basis.

= LCC expects the gallery to seek external funding

14 The SLA for this year has not yet been signed.



1.5

1.6

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

3.0

4.0

Page 23

For the financial year beginning April 2012, the Council has made provision
within its revenue budget for a grant of £10,700 to be paid to the Storey
Gallery (£2,675 per quarter), for such items as staffing, equipment, materials,
marketing and promotion and programming

The Council has also made provision for a ring fenced grant (to the Storey
Gallery) to the value of £27,100 for the purpose of rent paid directly to the
SCIC. This has, to date, been paid on a quarterly basis to the Storey Gallery,
following the submission of an invoice from the Gallery.

Report

On the 29 June 2012 cabinet members were sent a briefing note concerning
the gallery’s SLA and advice that that an announcement had been placed on
the gallery’s website advising that the “Storey Gallery is currently closed while
we undertake a period of research and  development.
We are re-thinking the way the Gallery operates, and the programme it
delivers.”

Following this announcement the briefing note sought members support to
‘suspend’ the SLA pending clarification of the gallery’s position. Members
were advised that the suspension was to be effective from the 1 July.

Notwithstanding the SLA suspension, the City Council has paid for the
gallery’s rent and service charges for the earlier period from 01 April to June
2012.

At a meeting held on the 6 July, the company was advised of the Council’s
decision regarding the suspension and they took the opportunity to update the
Council on their current position. They advised that James Rebank Consulting
had been appointed to research and develop an alternative business model
for the gallery going forward. It was agreed that when available it would be
presented to Cabinet to assist in consideration as to whether the current SLA
should be reinstated in some form.

That report has been circulated to Cabinet members prior to the meeting.

Details of Consultation

There has been no consultation on this matter.

Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment)

The options are to:

1

No longer have an SLA with the Storey Gallery.

2 Reinstate the SLA in full or in part. It is likely that the findings of the

consultant would lead to a complete redrafting of the existing agreement if
either of these options were selected.

In the light of the findings of the consultants report the officer recommendation is
Option 1.



Page 24

5.0 Conclusion

The City Council has had in place a long standing SLA with the Storey Gallery
company. The current financial and operational difficulty the company is facing has
led to the closure of the gallery space and a review of its current operational and
financial arrangements.

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK

Corporate Plan Economic Growth priority: Support arts in the district working with the Arts
Partnership.

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural
Proofing)

Will all be taken into consideration during the development of any new arrangements

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no legal implications arising as a result of this report

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
The Council has made provision within its revenue budget for a grant of £10,700 and a

ring fenced grant to the value of £27,100 for the purpose of rent paid.

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
Human Resources: None
Information Services: None
Property:

The Storey Gallery and company are housed within the Storey Creative Industries Centre; a
building owned by the City Council

Open Spaces: None

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has nothing further to add

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Deputy Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no comments to add to this
report.

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Richard Tulej
Telephone: 01524 582079
E-mail: rtulej@lancaster.gov.uk
Ref:




Page 25

CORPORATE PLAN 2012 - 15
HALF YEARLY MONITORING - SEPTEMBER 2012

09 OCTOBER 2012
Report of the Leader of the Council

PURPOSE OF REPORT
To report progress on actions in the Corporate Plan 2012 -15 at the half way point of 2012

Key Decision Non-Key Decision Referral from Cabinet X
Member

Date Included in Forward Plan N/A

This report is public

RECOMMENDATIONS OF LEADER OF THE COUNCIL

(1) That Cabinet considers and comments on the progress being made on
actions within the Corporate Plan 2012 - 15

1.0 Report

1.1 The Corporate Plan 2012 — 15 was approved by Council on 14 May 2012,
setting the direction for the delivery of council services and the achievement
of corporate priorities. The Corporate Plan brings together the council’s
strategic priorities, outcomes and actions that it wishes to deliver in the
medium term, as part of the council’s Policy Framework.

1.2 Actions in the Corporate Plan, together with the Medium Term Financial
Strategy (MTFS), drive the allocation of resources included in the council’s
medium term budgets, capital programme, HR Strategy, IS Strategy and
Medium Term Corporate Property Strategy as well as Service Business
Plans.

1.3 Six months into the first year of the life of the current Corporate Plan a review
has been undertaken of progress on actions that are necessary to deliver the
priorities and outcomes that the council hopes to achieve for the district.
Details of this review are set out in Appendix A.

2.0 Conclusion

2.1 The Council’'s Performance Management Framework requires the regular
reporting of operational, as well as, financial performance. The review of
progress on corporate plan actions at this early stage in the life of the 2012 -
2015 Corporate Plan clearly demonstrates that good progress is being made
towards the achievement of the council’s stated outcomes and priorities.

2.2 It is important that the council is able to adapt to changes in a planned and
considered way. To facilitate this the Corporate Plan is refreshed annually in
the context of changing needs and aspirations in the district, financial
forecasts and desired council tax targets and any other relevant resource
implications. Work on developing the 2013 — 2016 Corporate Plan will
commence at the end of October and will be informed by ongoing monitoring
and management of the council’s performance during 2012 — 2013 using the
new Performance Management Information system, CorVu.



Page 26

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK

This report is a requirement of the council’'s Performance Management Framework in
support of the council achieving its key tasks and objectives as reflected in its policy
framework

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural
Proofing)

None arising from this report

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

None directly arising from this report

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
None directly arising from this report
OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Human Resources / Information Services / Property / Open Spaces

None directly arising from this report

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The s151 Officer has been consulted. Any financial implications of this mid-year review will
be fed into the forthcoming MTFS mid-year review.

DEPUTY MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The deputy monitoring officer has been consulted and has no comments to add to this
report.

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Bob Bailey, Corporate
Planning & Performance Manager
Telephone: 582018

E-mail: rbailey@lancaster.gov.uk

Ref: CP Actions Progress Sept 12

CorVu Management Information System —
Corporate Plan 2012-2015 Actions Progress
Report




Page 27

Corporate Plan Actions — Sept 2012
Action

Appendix A
Comments

Priority: Clean, Green and Safe Places

Outcome: Council’s energy usage is reduced

Implement energy efficiency measures
for council buildings, housing and
vehicles

A number of schemes are underway to
improve energy efficiency across the
council including the implementation of
solar panels on council-owned buildings
and the capital programme

Complete council buildings improvement
programme

Progress being made against current
improvement programme but importantly,
conditions surveys now underway to
inform scope and prioritisation of works
needed in future

Consider how best to manage the
council’s future energy requirements

Being appraised through Property shared
service arrangements and in conjunction
with other services

Deliver the energy efficiency measures
within the planned and capital
programme for council housing

Budget for 2012/13 is £460,000.
Replacement of gas central heating
boilers that are coming to the end of their
useful life, where breakdowns are
frequent and parts are difficult to obtain.
Budget £400,000; Spend @ 11/09/212
£113,558. Replacement of communal
boilers with high efficiency boilers at
Kingsway Sheltered Housing Scheme.
Budget £60,000, work progressing.
Programme on track

Deliver energy efficiency works at Salt
Ayre Sports Centre

Solar panels installed and continued
reduction in energy consumption

Deliver actions to reduce the fuel
consumption of council fleet

Work is ongoing to ensure waste
collection rounds are planned in the most
efficient way. Trial of tracking system
taking place

Outcome: Income generated from energy, including solar technology

Deliver opportunities arising from
Government “green deal” scheme,
including solar technology

The Green Deal as it is currently
configured does not present any
opportunities to the council as a housing
landlord properties with high levels of
energy efficiency measures already in
place with an average SAP (2005) rating
of 71.5. Current programme of
installation of solar panels of blocks of
council flats coming to completion

Outcome: Income generated through climate change mitigation and adaptation
projects for reinvesting into the invest to save fund

Deliver the objectives of the Lancashire
Waste Strategy 2008 — 2020 to increase
amount of household waste re-used,
recycled and composted

2011/12 41.6% of all household waste
collected was reused, recycled or
composted. A comprehensive recycling
scheme is available district-wide. Over
60% of bulky household waste collected
is reused or recycled. Work is taking
place to ensure that householders make
full use of the arrangements that are in
place

Outcome: Our district is safe

Fund Police and Community Support
Officers (PCSOs) for 2012/13

9 PCSOs part-funded for 2012/13

Page 1 of 10




Page 28

Corporate Plan Actions — Sept 2012
Action

Appendix A
Comments

Priority: Clean, Green and Safe Places

Outcome: Our streets and public spaces are clean

Work with partners to deliver services
that keep our streets clean and safe

Street pride programme agreed for
2012/13

Public realm agreement with County is in
place

Council contributes to community
payback scheme

Council contributes to funding of PCSOs
and contributes funding and support to
the Community Safety Partnership
Council funds CCTV in town centres

Implement agreed actions for public
realm with an emphasis on street
cleansing and improvement of open
spaces

The agreed actions have been
implemented

Improvements to parks and open spaces

Williamson Park cafe redecorated
including externally with new menu and
longer opening. Use of memorial more
diverse. A new attraction introduced at
Happy Mount park and improvements
made to splash park. Excellent links are
in place with volunteers at Williamson
Park and Regent Park, where increased
involvement of staff saw new activity
sessions introduced

Outcome: Residents have pride in their

local area

Support the provision of more allotment
plots

Policy and allocations included in Draft
Local Plan published for public
consultation in October 2012

Deliver positive leisure activities for
young people

Central to programme of sport and
physical activity team - impact of
Olympics has helped - similarly with
relationship with schools and clubs

Through Take Pride and marketing
activity, increase awareness of social
responsibility and opportunities to
contribute to our clean, green and safe
places

The litter and dog fouling campaigns as
well as Street Pride all come under the
Take Pride banner. Listening Days have
been held and Phil the Bin character has
been out at a range of events to raise
awareness

Page 2 of 10




Page 29

Corporate Plan Actions — Sept 2012
Action

Appendix A
Comments

Priority: Community Leadership

Outcome: Increased participation in public consultations

Review the council’s use of customer
insight to inform and shape services and
create efficiencies

An update report will be presented to
Management Team in October

Work to develop increased online service
delivery options and engagement via
social media

The online service delivery group is
currently focussing on the following
projects:

¢ Online ticketing and booking

e CRM developments

¢ Increasing use of online payments
Management Team have approved
development of a mobile website

The council is broadening its use of
social media and web channels to inform
and communicate with individuals and
communities. Partners continue to
contribute to the council e- newsletter. A
tourism businesses e-newsletter,
Platform and Holiday activity e-newsletter
and Salt Ayre Facebook Page. Tweeting
and Facebook are used as standard now

Work with public sector partners to
communicate key messages and
information locally

The communications function continues
to work closely with partners on key
messages eg Family engagement; via e-
newsletter, via website. This summer
produced a joint holiday activity
programme in partnership with the
Childrens' Trust

Outcome: Better understanding of communities and needs so that services
that matter most to our communities will be prioritised

Develop a programme around the
community leadership role of councillors

KEEP IT REAL steering group
established now. Commenced with first
meeting held on 2 July 2012. Next
meeting to be held on 4 October 2012

Develop and implement 2012
engagement plan in partnership, where
appropriate, to inform member decision
making

The joint engagement exercise has been
agreed and a joint questionnaire focusing
on family was published on 17
September. The results will be used to
inform budget setting

Outcome: Council’s financial standing maintained to support future service

delivery and planning

Maintain resilience in emergency
planning

All actions on target. All services
business continuity plans have been
recently reviewed.

Review local tax collection and recovery
arrangements in response to welfare
reforms and BID proposals

Awaiting outcome of welfare changes
and BID proposals - nothing further to
progress at this stage

Meet all accountability and transparency
requirements

Statement of Accounts and Annual
Governance Statement approved at
Audit Committee on 19th September

Consider the implications of Council tax,
benefits and business rates proposals

Underway - will be addressed as part of
2013/14 budget

Page 3 of 10




Page 30

Corporate Plan Actions — Sept 2012
Action

Appendix A
Comments

Priority: Community Leadership

Outcome: Efficiency savings and service improvements achieved through joint

working and shared services

Implement and develop shared Property
Service with Lancashire County Council

Underway

Outcome: Local communities will be actively working with partners to improve
where they live, in ways that matter to them

Work with public sector partners to
deliver a range of innovative approaches
to communicate and engage with our
communities

The joint public sector family
engagement project is underway and will
inform budget making and inform
decision making within and between
organisations.

A number of Take Pride campaigns have
been developed in partnership — see
Take Pride action below

The council is broadening its use of
social media and web channels to inform
and communicate with individuals and
communities. Partners continue to
contribute to the council e- newsletter. A
tourism businesses e-newsletter,
Platform and Holiday activity e-newsletter
and Salt Ayre Facebook Page. Tweeting
and Facebook are used as standard
nNow.

Through Take Pride and marketing
activity, increase awareness of social
responsibility and opportunities to
contribute to their communities and the
district as a whole

A number of Take Pride projects have
been taken forward by the city council
and, in some cases its partners,
including:

e Voluntary sector awards with the
CVS

e Take Pride listening days, held jointly

with a range of organisations, have

taken place across the district.

Take Pride promoted at festivals

Take Pride Community Fund

Take Pride - Just Bin It

Take Pride in Family - joint public

sector engagement project

e Take Pride in where you live (Visit
Card)

e Take Pride page established on
council website directing people to
ways in which they can get involved

e Meetings held with a number of
partners to encourage support
including Chamber, arts partners and
university

Ensure our key partnerships are working
effectively

Partnership Evaluation Toolkit has been
streamlined for easier use. Scorecards
developing for existing partnerships.
Evaluations of the Council’s key
partnerships will be undertaken in early
2013

Page 4 of 10




Page 31
Corporate Plan Actions — Sept 2012 Appendix A

Priority: Community Leadership

Outcome: The voluntary, community and faith sector (VCFS) have capacity to
deliver services for the district

Work to develop the resilience and Take Pride Community Fund, which

capacity of the VCFS to deliver supports a range of VCFS sustainable

sustainable local services activities is launched and bidding
underway.

Commissioning arrangements for the
council's investment in VCFS are
underway with engagement work taking
place currently.

Outline proposals for VCFS infrastructure
partnership are being consulted upon
with partners. Ongoing engagement with
the Voluntary Sector Forum has begun
Outcome: The Children’s Trust, Community safety and the Arts and Culture
Partnerships in place and working effectively

Work with partners to support the Children's Trust Board and Partnership in
Children’s Trust Board and partnership place and working effectively. Children
and develop a Children and Young and Young People Action Plan 2012 -
People’s Plan for the district 2013 developed and agreed. City

Council produced holiday activity
programme on behalf of itself and
Children’s Trust Board providing
customers with a one stop shop at a
glance guide to what's on for young

people
Support Community Safety Partnership Community Safety Partnership and
and new arrangements around Police supporting groups in place and working
and Crime Commissioners (PCC’s) effectively. Monitoring of policy of

expected impact of changes relating to
PCC's ongoing with detailed information
expected following November elections

Page 5 of 10



Page 32

Corporate Plan Actions — Sept 2012
Action

Appendix A
Comments

Priority: Economic Growth

Outcome: Lancaster district’s recognition as a visitor destination is enhanced

Support arts in the district working with
the Arts Partnership

Officers continue to attend Lancaster Arts
Partnership meetings and work closely
with partners over Service Level
Agreements and as importantly, the
general arts development work. From a
tourism and events perspective, working
alongside partners in the development of
a range of events and tourism marketing
opportunities to meet the objectives set
out in the Corporate Plan, including Arts
City and Light up Lancaster, Lancaster
Unlocked and funding for Kite

Complete the review of the Museums
Partnership

Review of partnership complete - report
to Cabinet meeting in October expected

Outcome: Local Authority partners will be working together to develop plans
for economic growth aligned to nationally important energy and Heysham/M6

transport links

Develop and deliver planned elements of
the Project Management Plan for the
national grid infrastructure project

Decision due on strategic route options
shortly. Work commencing on
environmental scoping for route corridors

Develop proposals for Connecting the
Heysham Gateway

Further investment dependent on positive
decision for Heysham/M6 Link

Develop a framework for Community
Infrastructure Levy to secure funding
contributions for local infrastructure

Initial work finds Community
Infrastructure Levy non viable in current
economic circumstances

Outcome: More tourists coming to the district and tourist income is maximised

Work with the private sector to develop
proposals for city centre development in
Lancaster

Development agreement extended for
Canal Corridor North

Prepare and agree an Area Action Plan
for central Morecambe

Part of Draft Local Plan published for
consultation in October 2012

Work with partners to develop and deliver
events and festivals throughout the
district

Success of olympic torch relay also
enabled city centre cycle race and
various aquatic sports to take place for
the first time. The Seaside Festival was
a huge success with more than 25,000
people attending, with funding support
from MTC and support from the
emergency services before and on the
day. Working with Duchy and arts
partners to develop and extend Fireworks
Spectacular into a multi day event.
Currently developing Visitor marketing
Plan and working with partners in the
development of a range of festivals and
events for 2013 that will support the
objectives of increasing visitor numbers,
spend, bed nights and reputation

Page 6 of 10




Page 33

Corporate Plan Actions — Sept 2012 Appendix A

Priority: Economic Growth
Outcome: The attractiveness of the district as a place to visit is improved

Develop and deliver a campaign to Williamson Park received national
encourage film and broadcast companies | television coverage as did HMP.
to the district Morecambe promenade and the Platform

featured strongly in a major television
drama documentary. Other successes
include Turn Back Time. Press office
continues to coordinate and take
advantage of all opportunities. A
dedicated campaign will be undertaken
when resources allow

Work in partnership to develop and 2013 Visitor Marketing Plan in

deliver a tourism marketing plan for the development with input from partners

district and its attractions, particularly including Marketing Lancashire,

focused on staying visitors Museums, LAP, AONBs, Duchy, and
university

Continue to deliver Lancaster Square Projects on hold whilst capital

Routes scheme programme frozen due to Judicial review

of Booths decision

Outcome: The district’s cultural, retail and tourism offer is maximised

Develop and agree a tourism marketing Lancashire County Council have agreed
brand for the district to jointly fund and we will be invited
tenders of interest with a view to the
engagement exercise beginning late

Autumn
Continue to develop and market Happy Dialogue with a concessionaire has
Mount park as a key visitor attraction resulted in the development of a new

major attraction which has proved
extremely successful this summer. The
splash park has had improvements to
filtration system installed. Customer
feedback surveys in place. Some issues
with volunteers and maintenance of park.
Happy Mount Park continues to be
marketed as a key visitor attraction within
the district Visitor Marketing Plan,
including Visitor Information Centre

support
Develop retail and visitor service Retail sales continue to increase as does
provision at Williamson’s Park sales in the cafe. Despite structural

issues with buildings the park continues
to attract high numbers of visitors and
locals alike. Popular wedding destination
and has received national television
coverage

Outcome: Local authority partners working together to develop plans for
economic growth aligned to nationally important energy and Heysham M6
transport links

Develop a framework for Community Initial work finds Community
Infrastructure Levy to secure funding Infrastructure Levy non viable in current
contributions for local infrastructure economic circumstances

Page 7 of 10



Page 34

Corporate Plan Actions — Sept 2012
Action

Appendix A
Comments

Priority: Economic Growth

Outcome: Employment opportunities are created by development of energy
infrastructures which may include offshore wind, renewables and bio-mass

Develop clear land allocation and
development management policies for a
new nuclear power station at Heysham

Draft Local plan published for public
consultation in October 2012

Promote offshore wind, renewable
energy and bio mass opportunities in the
district

Full engagement in Walney Extension
project has begun

Work with strategic partners to bring
forward proposals for a science park
adjacent to Lancaster University

Consultants engaged for viability
assessment work with Lancashire County
Council and University

Develop apprenticeship programmes

5 apprentices have now been appointed
with a further two posts in the recruitment
phase. The apprenticeship programme
is also augmented by the 6 craft
Apprentices which the Council is joint
funding as part of the partnership with HT
Forrest. The apprenticeships are :
Marketing/Events

Vehicle Maintenance

Human Resources

Grounds Maintenance x 2

The other 6 Craft Apprenticeships are:
Plumbing x 2

Joinery x 2

Plastering x2

Outcome: The district’s local heritage is

protected

Commence delivery of Townscape
Heritage Initiative 2

Project underway

Work with the Duchy to consider options
for the long term use of Lancaster Castle

Officers from across Regeneration and
Tourism/Events have met with the Duchy
and those discussions will continue. The
Duchy are expected to be a partner in
this year's Fireworks Spectacular and
regeneration, tourism marketing and
events are working closely with them on
a range of projects including branding,
events and visitor marketing

Page 8 of 10




Page 35

Corporate Plan Actions — Sept 2012
Action

Appendix A
Comments

Priority: Health & Wellbeing

Outcome: Enhanced quality of life of local residents through access to good

quality housing

Bring empty properties back into use

14 empty properties returned into use to
date via intervention by Health & Housing
Service

Planning for sufficient, good quality
housing across the district

Draft Local Plan published for public
consultation in October 2012

Deliver social and affordable housing
schemes

Green field sites included in Draft Local
Plan with capacity to deliver more
affordable contributions

Work with the voluntary sector to reduce
rough sleeping in the district

In conjunction with Faith/Voluntary Sector
organizations a Complex Needs Panel is
being established and the National
initiative ‘No Second Night Out’ is being
launched in Lancaster on 12 November.
It is anticipated that this will reduce
number of rough sleepers across the
district

Undertake measures to tackle
homelessness

Prevention initiatives continue to be very
successful. This has resulted in
Homeless acceptances being 60%
ahead of target for this year

Complete housing schemes in the West
End

Project devised and in process of being
costed. Funding allocation from HCA
required match which is not currently
available

Deliver the council housing planned
maintenance and capital programme

The 2012/2013 programme includes
kitchen/bathroom refurbishment;
electrical rewiring; boiler replacements;
fire precaution works; and disabled
adaptations; external refurbishment; re-
roofing; environmental Improvements.
Budget £3.8m; Committed £2m; Spend
@ 11/09/2012 £637,000. Programme on
track

Deliver improvements in private sector
housing via enforcement and support

The delivery of all initiatives covering
both the owner occupied and private
rented sectors continue to be very
successful. Total number of improved
homes is currently 50+% ahead of this
year’s target

Outcome: Health and wellbeing improved and mortality rates reduced for

vulnerable people in the district

Work with partners to develop an air
quality strategy for the district

Air quality officer in post and working to
progress project plan for the strategy.

Deliver effective environmental health
services

On target to achieve business plan
objectives. Some high profile
enforcement work has been very
resource intensive this summer

Develop strategic health and wellbeing
arrangements in the district

The local health and wellbeing
partnership is awaiting publication of the
county wide strategy, which has been
slightly delayed and is expected by
December 2012. Therefore, the district
strategy is now unlikely to be in place
until March 2013

Page 9 of 10




Page 36

Corporate Plan Actions — Sept 2012
Action

Appendix A
Comments

Priority: Health & Wellbeing

Outcome: Impact of welfare reforms managed well so to avoid any
unnecessary impact on local communities

Work with partners to prepare for
Government’s welfare reforms

Public consultation underway (as

reported to Cabinet in September).

Outcome: The health and wellbeing of local residents of all ages is improved

by participating in sports and leisure ac

tivities

Work with public sector partners to
deliver health and leisure activities for
children and young people and older
people

Maximum numbers of attendance at
revised approach to providing holiday
programmes and success of Active
health programmes accommodates well
the need of the elderly. Again, efficient
programming enables inclusive
participation

Provide leisure and entertainment
facilities

Sports Centre and three swimming pools.
museums, parks, entertainment venue
and as importantly the effective
programming behind these facilities
continue to draw success - recognised
good practice as referred to by
neighbouring authority

Through the Take Pride campaign and
opportunities arising from the Olympic
year, raise the profile and importance of
involvement in sport and leisure activities

Marketing to support this objective
continues including development of a Go
Card to encourage involvement

Page 10 of 10




Agenda ltem 11 Page 37

CABINET

Budget and Planning Process 2013/14
09 October 2012

Report of Chief Executive

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To agree a process for reviewing the Council’s Budget and Policy Framework for
2013/14.

\:I Non-Key Decision EI Referral from Officers
Date Included in Forward Plan

This report is public.

RECOMMENDATIONS OF COUNCILLORS BLAMIRE AND BRYNING:

1 That the reported be noted and the outline budget and planning timetable set
out at Appendix A be approved.

REPORT

1 Introduction

1.1 The Council's Constitution requires Cabinet to bring forward each vyear
recommendations for updating the Budget and Policy Framework. This report
proposes an outline timetable for doing so and it covers four main aspects, namely:

the Corporate Plan

other plans and strategies in the Policy Framework

other key plans and strategies supporting the Policy Framework
the Budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS).

1.2 The draft budget and planning timetable for 2013/14 is set out in Appendix A. The
timetable must remain flexible, however, to ensure that the Council can take account
of changing circumstances and prospects.



2.1

2.2

23

3.1

Page 38

Corporate Plan

The Corporate Plan brings together the Council’s plans and strategies, focusing on
its medium term priorities to be progressed over a three-year period and drawing on
its key themes of working in partnership, managing resources well and operating in
an environmentally sustainable way.

The process for updating the Corporate Plan has varied over the years depending on
the extent of change needed. The aim in last year was to strengthen the focus of the
Corporate Plan and simplify its presentation, to give a clearer message on what the
Council’'s core purpose, values and vision are. This will continue for 2013/14
onwards.

In terms of reviewing and refreshing Plan, it is envisaged that no fundamental review
is required unless Cabinet or Council indicates otherwise. Nonetheless, the
proposed timetable needs to make provision for considering and responding to the
following:

— Legislative and regulatory changes

— National policy changes and funding prospects

— Changing needs of the district and its residents and visitors
— Recent performance and experience

— Local views and perceptions

Other Policy Framework Documents

In addition to the Corporate Plan, the Policy Framework includes various other
strategies and plans, a number of which were required as a result of government
Regulations or other drivers. An updated schedule will be reported to Cabinet for
consideration in due course but for now, Cabinet is requested to note the following
points :

(a) Housing Strategy and Regeneration Strategy

The need to prepare a new form of Regeneration Strategy has previously been
reported to Cabinet, to match the Council’'s approach to regeneration given the
current economic climate and public funding prospects. It was also envisaged
that the revised strategy would incorporate housing and any other relevant
strategies within it as an integral part; the housing aspects are particularly
relevant given the work underway in finding a solution for Chatsworth Gardens
and in developing an empty homes strategy, as examples. The aim is to present
the new draft regeneration strategy to Cabinet in February.

(b) Local Plan

Further to Council on 12 September, the Draft Local Plan was approved for the
purposes of public consultation and therefore arrangements are already in hand
to review this aspect of the policy framework. Following consultation, responses
will be carefully considered and the Council will be asked to decide on the form of
a final version of the plan to be placed on deposit with the Secretary of State. A
full public examination will take place before the Council can decide on whether
to adopt the Plan.



41

5.1

52

5.3

Page 39

(c) Community Safety Plan

It is anticipated than a refresh of the three-year Plan will be presented initially to
Cabinet in January, allowing some time for review following the Police
Commissioner elections in November.

Other Supporting Plans and Strategies

In recent months Cabinet has considered various strategic developments; direction
on areas such as tackling empty homes and markets provision are the subject of
reports elsewhere on this agenda. The section below outlines other planned areas
for review.

(a) Corporate Property and ICT Strategies

These aspects are currently being reviewed for presenting to Cabinet as part of
the 2013/14 budget process. At this point, it is unlikely that any aspects need to
be incorporated into the policy framework for approval by Council, but this will be
appraised fully in due course.

(b) Climate Change Strategy

The Climate Change Cabinet Liaison Group’s terms of reference include
“consider and make recommendations for the ongoing development of the
Council’s Climate Change Policy — Vision for 2020.” Given the shift in emphasis
in recent years, it is planned to update the Council’s related strategies, with a
strong focus on reducing energy usage, being more efficient in what we do use,
and finally on generating income — but also taking account of the resource needs
involved.

Budget Framework

The crux of the Budget Framework is the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS)
and the half-yearly review is scheduled for the November Cabinet meeting. Typically
it is then that Cabinet is requested to review council tax targets, although nationally
there is much concern and uncertainty surrounding funding prospects and the
implications of the Local Government Finance Bill — as far as possible, an update will
be included in the November report. That report will also cover General Fund capital
investment priorities, which drive future capital spending and financing plans.

Underpinning the MTFS is the detail of the 3-year Revenue Budget and 5-year
Capital Programme. Again the key milestones for preparing these budgets are
included in the appendix and work is already underway.

Cabinet will again provide the forum for developing a full set of proposals to balance
the budget and it is proposed that the budget process runs in much the same way as
last year. Key points to note are:

— The Local Government Finance Settlement is expected to be later this year —
perhaps around the middle of December.

— Detailed budget review meetings with Service Heads and Portfolio Holders are
scheduled to take place before Christmas.



54

6.1

7.1

8.1

Page 40

— Potential savings options will be developed by Service Heads alongside the
preparation of the current year’s revised and future years’ base budgets.

— Informal Cabinet Budget Briefings will be held, to report on progress overall and
to provide direction on specific aspects of budget development, including
potential areas for redirection of resources. At present the timetable include only
the usual scheduled briefing but more will be arranged as need be.

A flexible approach is required, to respond to information from Government as well
as more local matters including public consultation.

Options and Option Analysis
The following options are available to Cabinet.

(1) Approve the proposals and timetable set out in the report for reviewing and
revising the Council’s Budget and Policy Framework.

(2) Approve an amended version of the proposals, drawing on any specific
issues that Cabinet have.

Details of Consultation

General consultation surrounding supporting families and more specific consultation
in connection with council tax / welfare reforms is reflected in the proposed timetable.
Furthermore, provision is made for consultation with Budget and Performance Panel
and other stakeholders in the usual way.

Officer Preferred Option

Assuming that Cabinet has no other specific issues to address, Option 1 is the
Officer preferred option, as it sets out a structured approach for Cabinet to review the
existing Budget and Policy Framework, to identify savings/efficiency options, and for
it to bring forward its budget and policy framework proposals for 2013/14 and
beyond, within the statutory timescales. As usual, the consideration and
management of risk forms a key part of the process.

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK

The plans and strategies outlined in the report together make up the Council’s Budget and
Policy Framework.

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability etc)

The annual review of the budget and policy framework ensures that the Council’s plans and
strategies are kept up to date and compliant with the above criteria for assessing their
impact on local communities.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

None directly arising from this report, at this time.



Page 41

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS
The S151 Officer has contributed to the production of this report.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

Legal Services have been consulted and have no observations to add to this report.

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Deputy Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has nothing to add to this report.

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Nadine Muschamp
None. Telephone: 01524 582117

E-mail: nmuschamp@lancaster.gov.uk




‘sasuodsal
alreuuornsanb 1o} a1ep Buisojo
-uone}nsuod saljiwe} bupioddng, Gl
‘(910 sewoH Adwg
Buiyoe] ‘diysiauped wnasnpy ‘68) suoneoidwi
Aoijo0d /196pnqg yiim suodas snolea Japisuo)
‘s|qejswin
yiomawel4 Adljod % 196png 1 1/¢1 0z @rolddy ‘ul-je2 0} 108lqns “JeuIgeD
"MBIAY Ue|d 8)etodio) AllesA JeH 10 SUOISIOBp pJemio) axe | 60
"Buyelg Jouiqe) 20
‘SpasuU 92IN0sal
(QV JO uonoalipal / ymmoib
< [enuajod jo uoneoynuap|
() suoponpal 8oIAIBS -
@ uonesausb swooul -
o sepusaIs -
:suondo sbuines
Jo Juawdojanap ‘episbuoly
‘(sue|d 9o1nIBS
O 1x81U09 uI) Aemispun
s1ebpnq aseq yeup
‘Aemiapun steak ainnj pue 196pnq
uolneynsuod Joddns xej [1IoUn0) S,JeaA Jualind JO UOISIASY | SpJemuo Lo
1970320

uole}nsuo’n

[Iouno) Joulqe) 2 Aunniog S92IAI9S

vLIELOC
a[qejawi] ylomaweid Adijod pue jabpng

V XIAN3ddV




Page 43

[IoUN0YH

jauiqed

uolje} nsuo)
9 Auijniog

S9JIAIDS

9¢
‘'sjesodold q|g Jeyseoue]
0] asuodsal [1I9uno) AlID JapIsSuo)
‘'sajepdn yiomauwel4 [IouUNoD
Ao1jod Jo 1@6png Aue anleoay 10 SUOISIOBp pJemio) aye | Al
‘'sajepdn
ylomawel Aoljod 10 196png Jayjo Aue aAleay
‘dd®d
S,1970}0( WOJ} SUOIIEPUSWWODal AUR SAI809Y
"MaINSY Adlj0d sabiey) pue saa ajelodio)
'$$900.4d uoieyNSuUod
saliwey Buiioddns Jo sjnsal uo Jodal anledaYy
soljliold Juswisaaul |eyded  —
s1ebuie)
Xe} [1ounod Buipnjoul ‘mainal Jeah jey S4IN - ‘pauUE|d UONE)NSUOD ‘ul-|eo oy 108lgns ‘JauIgen
:sajepdn yiomauwelH Adljod pue 1obpng aAlaoay — sabueyo [eo1uyos) xe} [1Iouno) 10 SUOISIOBp pJemio) aye | 90
JOCUIBAON
‘uoljeynsuod saljiwe} buipoddns
woJj s}nsal aulpeay uo Joday ‘suondo pue (100 92) swayos uoddns
ssaiboud uo ajepdn |eiousb — Buysug Jouigqe) X} [IDUN0d U0 SPUS UOoIje}NSuo) 0s
‘ojelidoudde
se sJajew yJomawely Aoijod
% 196pnq Aue Japisuod (dde9)
|[oued @ouew.louad pue 1ebpng (o




'SISP|OH Ol|ofji0d }oulqed pue spesH

‘sabueyo

|eaiuyoa) pasoidde

Aue Jo Junodoe Bunye)
‘S[1I9UNOD JBY}0 0} palilou

[IoUN0YH

jauiqed

uolje}jnsuo)n

9 Auijniog

S9JIAIDS

92119 AQ uayeuapun smainal 126pnq pajielag pue paje|nojeo aseq xXe | L¢ Ag
‘'sajepdn ylomawel4
A21j0d 10 186png Jayjo Aue aAleoey
"owayos
poddng xe] [1I0Un0) Mau aAosddy
M ‘sjabie)] xey |1ounod 0}
o sobueys Aue pue (Juawisanu] [eyde) "[IouNo)
o Buipnjour) mainald S\ arolddy JO SUOIS|08p piemio) axe| AN
Dnuc -gjeudoidde
se sJajew yJomawely Aoijod
%2 196pnq Aue Japisuod 44739 Ll
‘awayog uoddng xe| |1ouno)
M3U UO [IoUn0) 0} SUOBPUBWIWODAI B)eN
‘sabueyod
Aoud Jo Aaijod Buibirawa Aue Jo 1xajuod
ul (ymolb juonoauipal/salousiolla/sbuines)
sjesodoud 196pnq Jayjo Japisuo) ‘ul-|ea 0y 108lgns ‘Jauiqe)
0BqPa8) UONE}NSUOD JO SUOISIOBp pJemlio} aye |
yum Jayiabol ‘sebueyd |eoluyos) xej [1ouno) - "Jaquiade(d
ajepdn swweibolid jeudeny - GO Joye awnawos (pun4
|eJouan) J0}) JUBWIeS
1obpnq enuenes yeiq - 9oUBUI4 JUSWUISAOD)
((Buisnoy |1Duno) pue pun4 [Blauas)) |e207 |euolsiaoid
sajepdn yiomawel{ Aoljod pue 1obpng aAleoay osieldde pue aAla0ey 0
JaquiaosaQg




"9SeaIoUl Xe} [10unod AlD anoiddy
(mainal Buimoljoy) serepdn
ylomawel 4 Aoljod Jayjo Auy —
ue|d ejelsodio) yeiq-—
UNO22Y anuaAay BuisnoH

pue pun4 |ejauas) Jo} sjesodoud
196png enuanay pue |ejide) —
lomawel
Aalj0d pue 196png ay) Buipiebal
s|jesodoud |eniul s}auige) Japisuon

90

Aieniqgaq

"SJop|oyeye]s JIWOoU0dd

‘sIaquIS|\ J8Y10 ‘dd8d O}
sjesodoud 106pnq sjuasaid JopeaT

6¢

Page 45

‘louno) Aq uonelapisuod [eniul
Joy} sjesodoud swuwelibold [eyde) pue 1o6png
aNUBASY puN4 [BIBUSS) ‘XE} [IoUN0) d31by

‘l1ouno) o} sjesodoud

S4LIN /196png (VHH) JUN022Y SnuaAay
BuisnoH puswwosal pue sjuay buisnoH 9916y
‘sajepdn Jayjo

Aue pue Abejens Aliadold ajelodio) ‘Abajens
191 ‘ueld 8jelodio) 1/€10z Welp Jopisuod
‘dd®g sJequsds

W0JJ sSuoljepuaWWOooal AUB aAI909Y

‘Buisiie spasu Jusw)saAul pue AsAINS sUOIPUOD
sBuipjing jedioiunwi Jo sjNsalJ Japisuo)

"ul-|leo 0} Jo8lgns ‘Jeuige)
O SUOISIo8p pJemlio] aye |

44

[IoUNo)

Joulgen

uolje}nsuo)
% Aunpniog

LIVETS

Asenuep




‘sjuswabuelle Buniodal
aouewlouad pue |eloueuly
ysiigeis3 yJomawe.l
Aoljod pue 196png
panoidde yum 4 0} sueid

Page 46

ssauisnq ad1Al18s ajepdn L Ag
yole
‘(ABeiens uonelsusboy
se yons ‘mainal Buimojjoy)
sajepdn ylomawel4 Aoljod Jayjo Auy
ue|d ajelodio) JAg
HHomawel4 Aoijod anoiddy
sojel Xe] |1ouno) [N} aAoddy
(s186.e) UB) Buisnoy
sseak ainyny Bunelsodiooul pue syebie |
Xe| |1Iouno) sleak aininy Buipniour)
ABajens |eloueuld WIS ] WNIPSIA
sHwiT 8poY [enuspnid Buipnjoul
ylomawel juswabeuel Ainseal |
71/€10¢ XeL [Idunod
(Apeasje panoidde
10U JI J8)1B|) JUNOJJY dnudAay BuisnoH
pue pun4 [elauas) Yyiog Joj swwelbold
|jenden JAg pue 106png anuanay JAg ‘Iounoy
:39b6png aroiddy JO suoIs|oap Juaws|dwi| 12
‘ajepdn
ylomauwel4 Adljod pue jebpng ay} a}9|dwoo
0} [IoUNOY 0} Y}OB( SUOEPUSWILIOIAI [|N} BN
‘uayeuapun uoleyNSU0D
Jayunj Aue pue |sued adouewlopad pue 196png ‘A|Buipioooe sueld
‘1ouN0D wWody yoeqpaaj jo ybi ul sjesodoud ssauisnq a21AI8s ajepdn
ylomawel4 A21j04 Jayio pue 196png Japisucoay ‘I0UN0Y) 10} Spodal [eliayel
‘IoUNOY 0} SUolEPUBLIWOIAI aonpoud pue jauiqe)
ayew pue Abajeng uoneisusbay Japisuo) 10 suonnjosal Juswa|dw| AN

[IoUN0YH

jauiqed

uolje} nsuo)
9 Auijniog

S9JIAIDS




Agenda ltem 12 Page 47

CABINET

Festival Market Morecambe
9" October 2012

Report of Head of Environmental Services

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To provide information to Cabinet in order to agree a direction for improving market provision
in Morecambe and also Lancaster.

Key Decision Non-Key Decision Referral from Cabinet
Member

Date Included in Forward Plan 6 September 2012

This report is public

RECOMMENDATIONS OF COUNCILLOR BARRY
To be made at the Cabinet Meeting
1.0 Introduction

1.1 Lancaster City Council currently operates three markets within the District.

These are-
. Assembly Rooms- Lancaster
° Charter Market- Lancaster

Festival Market — Morecambe

This report does focus on Morecambe’s Festival Market, because there are
some matters that need to be brought to the attention of Cabinet. However, it
does also indentify that a strategic view of the Council’s market provision needs
to be taken in order to ensure the sustainability of the three existing markets.

1.2 The Festival Market in Morecambe was originally designed, following
consultation with traders and other stakeholders, as a covered outdoor facility
that could double up as a market and a venue for events and festivals.

1.3 The original intention for the market was that it would operate as a traditional
‘outdoor’ market, albeit with cover from the rain. As such traders would remove
their goods at the end of each trading day. This would then allow for its other
use as an events venue.

1.4 In the last few years the Festival Market itself has been rarely used for events.
Effectively the Festival Market is now solely a market (with an outdoor events



1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

Page 48

programme).

Also the nature of the Festival Market has changed. Over a period of time many
of the stalls have become permanent features with traders leaving goods
overnight. This combined with the fact that the facility is covered
understandably has resulted in the perception amongst both traders and
shoppers that the Festival Market is an indoor market or market hall. When
actually it was designed to be a covered facility that could host an ‘outdoor’
market.

In developing the Morecambe Area Action Plan (MAAP) consideration was
given to the Festival Market and surrounding area. What the MAAP says about
this is critical to this report in terms of setting the context.

In terms of location of the market and the general issues affecting the market
the MAAP says-

The town centre can be anchored at its western end by an “entertainment hub”.
This can be grown from the existing complex of buildings around the old railway
station (‘The Platform’) and the Festival Market and focus on this latter
rejuvenated as a true indoor destination. This complex of buildings though very
centrally located is paradoxically quite isolated and for pedestrians the various
buildings relate very poorly to each other. The buildings and public entrances
present to the main roads adjoining and so face away from each other. In
addition, in form and design the complex appears somewhat incongruous in the
context of the Midland Hotel across the seafront opposite. For various reasons
pedestrian footfall here is constrained.

Following consultation with traders at the time, the Festival Market was
designed as a covered outdoor facility capable of hosting festivals and events.
In practice neither of these aspects has assisted trading particularly well. The
market is a facility that is well liked by many local people and has a visitor
function but trading is constrained and the ambience is deficient. In particular,
the structure not being wind tight provides little protection from the cold and this
makes trading quite challenging and impairs the experience it is possible to
offer customers. Whilst the stalls were envisaged as being semi-transient and
capable of moving out for a fortnight each year, in practice the stalls are well
established units operated by a mixture of loyal and long-standing stall holders
together with newer tenants helping to diversify the market’s offer. Despite this,
the centralised location offers an easily accessible location and the potential for
a much higher profile and role in the town centre.

Development of the extensive areas of land west of Northumberland Street and
to the rear of the Winter Gardens (and other properties fronting to Marine Road
Central) is vital to knit the town centre together as one. This development must
be properly structured to routes for pedestrian movement. Over time,
development here and a town centre that is strengthening should support
trading in premises fronting to Marine Road and thereby make investment in
these and including the Winter Gardens more attractive to investors.

The MAAP development policy for this area (DO5) is —
The council identifies particular opportunities for investment and development

of main town centre uses within the area defined on the Local Plan Proposals
Map as Development Opportunity Site DOS.



1.9

Page 49

The council will consider proposals for development within this Site in
accordance with MAAP Spatial Policies 1 and 4, Policy EC1.1 of the
Development Management DPD and all other relevant policies in this excepting
for Policy EC 1.2 which will not apply.

In addition development should —

e relate well in urban design terms to the rear elevations of the Winter
Gardens, those of the other premises fronting to Marine Road Central and
those residential and other properties fronting to Northumberland Street

e enable satisfactory access and servicing arrangements to the rears of all
premises fronting to Marine Road Central
improve passive surveillance and overlooking of the train station

o improve the legibility of pedestrian routes to and from the train station and
onward

In addition, any proposals involving changes to or the removal of existing
facilities including any public realm, the existing skatepark and / or the bus
station should either make satisfactory alternative provision or include a
financial contribution to cover the full costs of this.

The action set identified in the MAAP is-

The Platform / Festival Market / Superbowl complex of buildings is an important
area on and close to the central seafront. It is the interface between several
quarters yet footfall is much lighter than the location would suggest and trading
here is consequently challenging.

The location affords much potential as a leisure and entertainment hub and as
an anchor to the town centre. There is scope for investment and development
to improve and extend what is on offer in this area and to increase vitality and
activity. But there are difficult issues. There are issues with property and
premises and how fit for purpose these are and how well the various elements
relate to each other and the wider surroundings.

As example, the Visitor Information Centre (VIC) offers a high quality and
award winning service but is not readily found from main points of arrival or
easily accessed direct from the seafront. The Festival Market has a loyal
custom base but the building relates poorly to its surroundings and the offer
needs to be invigorated.

The council working in partnership with private organisations with a stake in this
complex of buildings to study investment and development potentials and
options including to —

e provide for a stronger offer complementary to the main draws of the Cinema
and Festival Market e.g. the food and drink offer in the vicinity and new retail

o refurbish and redevelop buildings and premises as appropriate to improve
these as premises for trading

e improve the setting of the complex, pedestrian connections to and from and
arrangements for coach drop off and pick up.



1.12

1.13

Page 50

e rejuvenate the Festival Market, potentially in a reconfigured and upgraded
building, possibly focused on a marketplace and festival area at its centre
and, via introducing new management approaches

e support the cinema offer and improve its presentation, quality and ambience

e make more of the currently council led entertainment offer and the visitor
services as presently at the Platform

Subject to the outcome of the study the council and its partners to consider the
options.

Complementary with the above actions the city council to work with those
others with interests in land west of Northumberland Street to help facilitate
beneficial investment and development and including for the Winter Gardens
and the Winter Gardens arcade.r

In asset terms the land, facility and surrounding car park are all owned by the
Council. In financial terms the market costs approx £250,000 per annum to run
and is expected to generate £350,000 per annum of income.

The market has capacity for 93 stalls with a trading area of 9.29 square metres
and 15 lock-up shop units with a trading area of 13.37 square metres. The
charges to traders are shown below and the rates are based on it being an
outdoor market.

Festival Market Summer (1st May to 31st October) Daily charges

Shops Stalls
Tuesday/Thursday £17.25 Tuesday/Thursday £14
Saturday £19.75 Saturday £14
Sunday £22.25 Sunday £22

Festival Market Winter (1st November to 30th April) Daily charges

Shops Stalls
Tuesday/Thursday £14.75 Tuesday/Thursday £10
Saturday £14.75 Saturday £12
Sunday £17.25 Sunday £17

Following the closure of Lancaster’s indoor market Morecambe market will act
as the base from which Lancaster’s charter market and Assembly Rooms are
managed. This will ensure a more consistent approach and a more efficient
one.

Generally the market offering provided in the District has the potential to make
a significant contribution towards the delivery of the Council’s corporate plan in
the following ways-

Increase visitors coming to the District

Increase visitor spend in the District

Enhance recognition of the District as a visitor destination
Protect the district’s local heritage

Reduce CO2 emissions from council activities



Page 51

Reduce Council’s energy usage

1.14 Besides the MAAP the following significant contextual issues also need to be

considered-

e Square Routes Project

¢ Duchy’s plans for the Castle

e Private market provision within the District
e Impact of M6 link

To ensure the Council’'s markets fit within this context and contribute to the
Council’s aims it is important that a strategic view of the market offering in the
District is taken.

In doing so it is obviously important to engage with relevant stakeholders.
Already traders at Morecambe Market have expressed concerns about a
number of issues. These include-

The Council’s commitment to markets.

In winter the facility is very cold and traders say that this puts off their
regular customers.

Traders say that actually the maijority of their trade takes place in the
summer months. They feel that the majority of their shoppers are visitors to
the District and people who live on nearby caravan parks during the
summer. Therefore they feel that more could be done encourage more
visitors during the summer and more locals during the winter.

Traders feel the structure of the facility could be better maintained (eg the
sliding doors, problems with electricity supply) and that generally the facility
needs some investment.

Traders would like to see expansion of existing Council markets (eg extra
days) but not in a way where markets are competing against one another.
Car parking charges at the Festival Market. Traders feel that because the
adjacent supermarket car park is free shoppers are more inclined to go to
the supermarket rather then the market.

Coach parking. There has been an increase in coach parties visiting the
market. Many of the visitors prefer to be dropped off immediately outside the
entrance to the building as opposed to having to walk from the coach stop
which is about 30metres away.

Visibility of the market- traders do not feel that visitors realise that there is a
market as it is not clearly visible from the Promenade. The way the
entrances are located does not help with this and creates a disconnect with
the surrounding area.

Marketing of the market. Traders feel more could be done to promote the
market more widely.

Some traders think that a different location for the market could benefit
trade. All traders think that having a market in Morecambe is essential.

A private market operates nearby this creates issues for traders.

Traders express a particular concern with regard to rent payments.
Following recommendations from Audit Committee traders can no longer
pay their rent in cash at the market. This is a positive step forward as it
improves safety for staff, reduces handling charges, is fully auditable etc.
Clearly the onus is on traders to keep up to date with their rental payments
but some fell in significant arrears. In turn they blamed this on no longer



2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

2.6

Page 52

being able to pay cash on the day. The Council has in place a clear policy
for management of debtors. This policy had not been fully applied and the
situation worsened. Officers have now taken action to ensure that Traders
who have built up arrears are now being dealt with in accord with the
Council’s policy. The arrears situation is now improving significantly. And
further work is being undertaken by Internal Audit to ensure these
improvements are sustained.

Proposal Details
The above can be distilled in to the following main points-

BUILDING ISSUES- The Festival Market was originally designed to be an
‘outdoor’ market. The perception now is that is an ‘indoor’ market. The design
of the building means that to convert it into an indoor market with heating,
structural improvements, insulation, different doors etc would require significant
investment. Some initial investigation works took place and suggested that to
make the needed improvements that would be needed to heat the building the
building in a sustainable way would require between £200-300K of investment.
Detailed condition surveys of all Council buildings have been commissioned
and are currently taking place. It is expected that these will provide much more
detailed information, that could be used to provide more detailed costings.

Traders have asked if a temporary heating solution could be put in place. The
existing electricity supply to the building needs upgrading and will not cope with
industrial electrical heaters and these would be very expensive to run in any
case. Gas heaters have also been investigated but there are a number of
safety and operational issues associated with these which mean that this would
not be a practical solution.

COACH / CAR PARKING- The County Council will not permit an additional
entrance to the market car park for coaches, because of valid safety concerns.
Another option would be to remove a number of parking spaces in the car park
to safely facilitate coach access (approximately 15). This would mean coach
parties could be dropped off at the entrance of the building. This would
obviously impact on revenue generated from car parking, particularly on
summer Sundays when the car park is full. Any changes to existing parking
fees for market shoppers would also impact on revenue generated from car
parking. Options can however be considered by Members when the annual car
parking fees and charges report is considered, as part of this year’s budget.

MARKET LOCATION- the land and facility belongs to the Council. The work
done in developing the Morecambe Action Plan highlights that in some ways
the Market is well located, in some ways it isn't. Traders generally feel the
location of the market is good but needs to be better connected to the centre of
Morecambe. To ensure that all avenues are explored consideration could be
given to whether locating the market elsewhere, in Morecambe, would address
some of the issues raised above and then the area occupied by the market be
used for something else. Clearly an option like this would require a detailed
business case and consultation. There is no guarantee though that the Council
could afford this option, even if there was a case for doing so.

MARKET OFFERING- it is clear that Morecambe’s market is valued and is well
used. The Council currently provides two other markets. Managed effectively



2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

2.1

212

213

Page 53

these markets can make a significant contribution to the delivery of the
Council’s corporate plan, and are potentially key to complementing the aims of
projects like Square Routes and the Morecambe Area Action Plan. In order to
ensure the ongoing sustainability of the Council’'s markets it is essential that we
gain an understanding of what the needs of existing market users are. Even
more importantly we also need to understand the needs of those who currently
don’t use the markets but would if the offering was right. Once understood we
will then be in a position to manage the markets in a more effective way.

CONSULTATION- In preparing this initial report is very clear that there are
many people who have a genuine desire to ensure the prosperity of the
Council’'s markets. Engaging the views of these people will be vital. In
developing the report consultation has taken place with representatives traders
from Morecambe Festival Market- a document from one of the traders is
attached and this sets out preliminary views (APPENDIX 1).

CHARGES TO TRADERS- currently the charges made by the Council to
traders (as set out in para 1.11) reflect that the market is basically a covered
outdoor market. Improvements to the building would obviously require a
reappraisal of the charges that the Council makes to traders.

In terms of strategic options there are in outline basically three-

STRATEGIC OPTION 1- DO NOTHING (MAINTAIN EXISTING FACILITY) -
the fabric of the facility will still need some investment to maintain it and
address any existing problems; the extent will be informed by the conditions
survey. This may have some impact on the financial standing of the market
and the contribution that the market can make towards the Council’s corporate
plan. It may mean a lost opportunity to take advantage of the much greater sum
of the parts that adopting a strategic view to market provision could offer. This
option may also be inconsistent with the MAAP, but it may prove to be the only
affordable option. It would still involve appraisal of current rents.

STRATEGIC OPTION 2- CONSIDER OPTIONS FOR IMPROVING THE
EXISTING FACILITY AT MORECAMBE- based on the condition survey
currently being undertaken a range of costed solutions for improving the current
facility in Morecambe could be brought forward. These would be combined with
realistic plans for ensuring the sustainability of the Council’'s markets as a
whole. It is expected that to implement these considerable investment would be
required and market rents would need to increase, so ultimately any options
may prove financially unworkable. This option assumes that the best place for a
market in Morecambe is the existing location. Development of this option would
need to take into account the MAAP.

STRATEGIC OPTION 3- CONSIDER ALL OPTIONS- this differs from OPTION
2 in that it does not assume that the only location for a market in Morecambe is
where it currently is. In preparing this option consideration would be given not
just to how the current Festival Market could be improved (as per OPTION 2)
but to what other options there could be for providing a sustainable market in
Morecambe. As with OPTION 2 realistic plans for ensuring the sustainability of
the Council’s markets as a whole would also be developed. This option is most
consistent with the MAAP, but again it may prove unworkable financially.

Both options 2 and 3 would require an officer working group to develop the



2.14

2.15

2.16

217

2.18

219

2.20

Page 54

options. It is expected that in developing the options consultation would take
place with a wide range of stakeholders, obviously including traders, Elected
Members, Morecambe Town Council, business representatives, shoppers etc.

To take forward options 2 and 3 thoroughly and within existing resources, it is
expected that reports would be available in order to inform the 2014/15 budget
process.

Options 2 and 3 will clearly take some time to develop and implement, if
approved. Besides the 3 strategic options outlined above Cabinet may wish to
consider some short term options for the Market. These include-

SHORT TERM OPTION 1- Provision of coach drop off point- this would
require the removal of approx 15 car parking spaces and associated revenue
and some lining work to be undertaken. Traders feel it will increase the amount
of coach parties that visit the market and there is anecdotal evidence to
suggest that coach companies also agree this would be advantageous. If
Cabinet wishes to consider this option it could be appraised more fully and
implemented if appropriate, from within existing budgets.

SHORT TERM OPTION 2- Amendment of car parking charges for the
Festival Market car park. This would have a much more significant budgetary
impact than the provision of a coach drop off point. It would also be likely to
increase the amount of vehicles in the area, require new car park equipment
and create other unintended consequences. If Cabinet wishes to consider this
option again it could be built in as an option in the car parking fees and charges
report that will be considered as part of the budget process.

SHORT TERM OPTION 3- Look at different ways of marketing the market.
This would require a look at how best to promote the market(s). Consideration
would need to be given to the resource required to undertake the work as it
couldn’t be done from within existing resources. The resource implications
would be brought in through the budget process.

SHORT TERM OPTION 4- Look at some short term practical ways of
improving the insulation of the market. The aim of this would be to reduce
the winter extremes of temperature. Additional resource would be required to
establish what the option were and further additional resource would be
required were any of the options to be implemented. The risk of this though is
that adopting a piecemeal approach to the maintenance issues affecting to the
market becomes more costly in the medium / long term.

Overview and Scrutiny Committee have formed an informal task group to also
consider the Festival Market. At its meeting on 10" September 2012 Members
of the group requested that the following be considered by Cabinet-

(1) options for insulating the Market's roof particularly with polystyrene
materials.

OFFICER COMMENT- See SHORT TERM OPTION 4 and STRATEGIC OPTIONS 2
and 3 above

(2) wind protection and draft stopping, particularly around the Market's doors
including the possibility of installing barriers in front of each door.



Page 55

OFFICER COMMENT- See SHORT TERM OPTION 4 and STRATEGIC OPTIONS 3
above

(3) installing a coach drop off in the Market car park.

OFFICER COMMENT- See SHORT TERM OPTION 1 above

(4) marketing (including coach companies) and the signage of the Market.
OFFICER COMMENT- See SHORT TERM OPTION 3 above

(5) the cost of re-wiring introducing 3 phase electric in the Market.

OFFICER COMMENT- See STRATEGIC OPTIONS 2 and 3 above

3.0 Details of Consultation
As outlined within the report.
4.0 Officer Preferred Option (and comments)

4.1 The officer preferred strategic option is STRATEGIC OPTION 3. The options
that come forward are likely to provide the best strategic options for delivery of
a market within Morecambe, will take account of the MAAP, and will be
designed to complement market provision as a whole, but it must also be
recognised that it may still prove financially unworkable. It is also envisioned
that in developing this option Officers will bring forward the building issues
identified within the commission survey and costed options for resolving them.
This option will avoid a piecemeal approach to the dealing with the
maintenance issues affecting the building.

4.2 The officer preferred short term options are SHORT TERM OPTION 1 and
SHORT TERM Option 3.

5.0 Conclusion

5.1 The report provides options for the future of the Council’s provision of markets

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK
As outlined within the report
CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT

(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural
Proofing)

Markets are a facility available to all
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no legal implications at this stage.




Page 56

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

In accounting terms, markets are a trading undertaking. @ The asset management
requirements of operating a market (e.g maintenance, return through rents chargeable) will
have direct bearing on its trading position and financial objectives.

Morecambe Market is a well established market facility. The 2012/13 current revenue
budget assumes a net surplus of £102K for 2012/13, £94K for 2013/04 and £85K for
2014/15, but these do not currently provide for any support services charges.

The report seeks direction for the future of market provision in Morecambe and Lancaster
and whilst there are no direct financial implications at this present time, Members should be
mindful that the development of each of the options could ultimately result in costs, which
ultimately would be passed onto the tenants through increased charging.

STRATEGIC OPTION 1 to do nothing comes with inherent risk. The fabric condition of the
building is in high need of reinvestment if the Council are to continue gaining existing rent
levels. Whilst there are maintenance budgets available within Morecambe Market, it might
be these are insufficient in the future to cope with the level of repair required. Any
programme of works will need to be financially appraised.

STRATEGIC OPTIONS 2 or 3 would require the establishment of an officer working group
featuring a diverse membership of senior managers from across the council. It is hoped that
their time could be accommodated within service business plans and therefore managed
from within existing budgets, however there may be a need for specialist advice to support

the group. It is likely that once developed, either of these options will result in the need for
significant capital investment, and whilst unquantifiable at the moment, a further report would
be required to Cabinet to report the recommendations of the working group in operational
and financial terms.

SHORT TERM OPTION 1 requires the removal of approximately 15 car parking spaces and
the provision of new lining. The car park operates to capacity on very few occasions
therefore it is expected that this will have minimal financial impact due to displacements.
The provision of lining can be managed from within existing budgets.

SHORT TERM OPTION 2, as discussed in the report, if Cabinet wish to make any changes
to the car parking tariffs operating in the car park, then any recommendations will be
included as part of the forthcoming car parking fees and charges report which is considered
as part of the budget process.

SHORT TERM OPTION 3 discusses additional marketing to promote the market. There are
no resources available for this so compensating savings would need to be found prior to this
taking place.

SHORT TERM OPTION 4 looks at short term practical ways of improving the insulation of
the market. Inevitably there will be some financial consequence to this option where again
no resources are available so compensating savings would need to be found. There is also
the possibility that this work could be wholly abortive should members choose to approve
either of Strategic Options 2 or 3.




Page 57

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Human Resources:
NA

Information Services:
NA

Property:
As outlined in the report

Open Spaces:
NA

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The s151 Officer has been consulted. The Council already has competing demands for
capital investment and should not expect to be able to afford to do all it might want to —
prioritisation is needed and savings will be needed in various service areas. Cabinet is
advised, therefore, to consider where market improvements may fit in priority terms and this
should inform whether it is worth Officers spending time in pursuing Strategic Options 2 and
3. The risk is that time and money is spent in developing options and expectations are
raised, only for them to prove unworkable financially. Managing expectations will be crucial
if these options are taken forward.

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Deputy Monitoring Officer has been consulted (in the absence of the Monitoring
Officer)and has no observations to make on this report.

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Mark Davies
Telephone: 01524 582401
E-mail: Mdavies@lancaster.gov.uk
Ref:




Page 58

Kay's Cards Ltd.
Morecambe Festival Market
Morecambe

LA4 4DW

11.09.20172
Dear Sirs/Madams,

RE: Morecambe Fastival Market Cabinet Meeting

My Husband and | have been a Market Trader on Morecambe Festival Market for the last
seven years and before us, my Father owned it for twenty-eight years. | worked with my
Dad on the Poulton site and remember the hustle and hustle of customers, many arriving by
coach. As people’s shopping expectations and habits changed, L.C.C. built Morecambe
Festival Market which has served us well for approximately the last seventeen years.
“However, once again we are at a point where customers love-shopping in -markets but
expect more from the experience as they are so accustomed to what supermarkets have to
offer.

if you go into Morrisons the fruit and vegetable area is called “Market Place”;
subcansciously the customer is in a market but they have been grested hy heating, free

parking, automatic doors and free toilets.

if we are going to be part of Morecambe’s future we have to move with the times and
match the competition.

3
3
b
E

uestion has been posed; whare shall g new

We have thought long and hard over this and after visiting other markets and comparing
them to ourselves, we strongly believe we should remain in our current location and
refurbish the existing building for the following reason.

The majority of Morecambe Festival Market's trade comes in summer from holiday makers.
Few locals in comparison support us in winter (this may be because of the cold). We believe
when a customer sits at home wondering where to go for a run out, they think they are
going to a ‘seaside’ market, where if for example the market is moved next to the Arndale
Centre we become ‘just another shop’, not a day out. We would then lose our important
summer trade and the reason the coach companies use to encourage passenger numbers.
Maoving us could be the death of Morecambe Festival Market.

Heating
Rightly or wrongly, customers believe they are in an indoor market and as such they are

shacked when entering and find it colder inside than out. You can debate all you like about
it being an indoor or outdoor market on paper, but the important point is the customers
think it is an indoor {roof/walls) and expect a certain level of warmth. As traders we
understand we sometimes have to suffer working conditions of -2 to -8°C for ten hours a
day, four days a week, for three to four months of the vear in order to earn a living,
customers don't and they are taking their money elsewhere. Thus making it harder for us 1o
make a living and even harder for L.C.C. to keep the market fufl, losing rent as a result, With




Page 59

the changing climate we firmly helieve we need temporary heating in for this winter and
permanently fitted heating as soon as financially possible,

Trade lines have changed over the years e.g. you don't buy a watch, you check the time on
your mobile. Children’s toys have to be branded or computerised and books come on
tablete not an paper. This is another reason for heating, the stalls left vacant by wateh and

toy stalls etc need to he filled by new products, for example hairdressers/nail bar {which has
just opened) but how is she going to wash hair when the anly thing coming out of her taps

in winter is ice.

Free Parking

This is something that could be sorted very. quickly. A loi of Councils have already
implemented this and are now advertising it. It would be good P.R. for L.C.C. to get in there
early and get it on the radio/television etc on how they are helping Morecambe traders.
There are several options:

1. First hour free
2. Token 10p for one hour
3. Free after 3pm or 9-10am on market days.

We feel the best would be first hour free; this would encourage the locals to shop with us.
At the moment is they go to the Arndale Centre thev nav, then they move the car to us
because they can’t carry their heavy shopping from Tesco, then they have to pay again. This
is the reason they all use one of us, resulting in low footfall. Nobody is going to pay twice to
shop in the same town.

We did debate about first half hour free instead of first hour, but this would result in
customers running in and using one or two stalls then straight out again. To keep the stalls
full the customers need time to circulate around the whole market, ensuring its future.
Personally, we sell cards from 45p each, wrapping paper — four sheets for 50p, making us
one of the best value retailers in the area however not when you incorporate the £1.20 per
hour car parking charge.

Free parking would encourage more to use us, increasing the market footfall. Whatever is
lost in parking charges would be oftset by the rent fie. ten empty stalls equais a £30,000 a
year loss.

Coach Parking
Most passengers on a coach trip are of a mature age, because of this we need to make

changes to coach drop off and pick up noint. 1 have rung and spoken to <everal coach
companies and they all say the same thing. Older people, some with walking difficulties
need dropping preferably next to the toilets or as close {0 the market as possible. If they are
dropped or picked up close to Next they either lose sense of direction, being in a strange
town, or physically cannot walk across Morrisons car park and back {taking their life in their
hands).
“The loss of five car parking spacesiiv order to build a coach lay by seems a simall price to pay -
when balanced against the increased footfall that coach companies will provide on a daily
basis.

Signage/Advertisement




Page 60

L.C.C. could spend £500,000 refurbishing the market but without plenty of road signs from a
few miles outside the market in ali directions, people still won’t know where we are until
they arrive in our car park. This has been pointed out by customers on many occasions when
talking with them.

Aot of our customers travel from Wigan/Burnley etg, if they don’tlisten to Bay Radio or get
The Visitor they don’t know the Kite Festival or Seaside weekends are on. Morecambe
desperately needs advertising boards on lamp posts coming into Morecambe as well as on
the prom with ‘where we are’ and ‘what’s on’, The Council is doing a lot of work to stage
events yet failing to advertise them visually.

Rent payments

As traders we would also like 1o bring to your attention the issues we are facing regarding
the new rent collection process.

We know no matter what we say this issue will not be changed. 1.C.C. will continue to
collect payment for rent as they see fit even though thev broke a system that worked and
replaced it with one that has lots of problems. The staff collecting rent do not work in the
markel so there are constant mistakes on invoices. Traders continually have to check
mountains of paperwork L.C.C. send us, then we have to ringEEEERE L[ is never in,
before being told someone will get back to us when they have checked the ‘problem’ out.
Previously, any query could he sorted at the office window within minutes, now it can take
three to four days of ringing backwards and forwards. To add to this, I'in sure the new
system must be costing L.C.C. far more to maintain with the amount of man hours and
paperwork that is required as opposed to the old system.




Page

D i —

the contentious former Dome area, it
- seems fo be the limit of thelr vision:
TFinally, while they have heen =
chasmg this £100,000, who Inthe -

1 CONGRATULATIONS on winning the
-| £100k, but while councillors celebrate -

“ the Portas money, I wonder how many

“of thein have actually vead the Portas

- Report which. strong criticises. . - council has been ﬁghting fora: .
councils for killing g&" hlﬁh‘ ameet ‘ "good slice of the £60m under spent "
with car parking chg_rge;j 4na L + for the North West in Ewropean -,

-efforts they go to, 16 eﬁfogce—fhem _funding? Lancaster City Couneil

_.‘Tﬁe'e‘ﬁmvatlve tariis

- wihieraby the firSt Ohie or [wo hours
476 1Yes, OF SCHGTIES WHOTE yOU CAll
‘edeern the cost of yoin parkingfes.
wheit spending money in the lown,
This s the gort of thing that would

bring people back to the hilgh stréet, -
a’ﬁ'd““"turn ere Will be less and Iess -
em Ly shops ‘What they lose on ¢

"' have confirmed it to me that they are
--aware of this massive pot, yet their '
M Ay ctionPl

. Pexhaps they just m there is no
. “money for Mor ecambe as Lancaster .
*wants it for their Williamson and -
Ryelands Parks regeneration, city.
regeneration, Science Park,

.ll

lreate with car parklng charges.

Tenk ek g
M e \if—kf -

eooeont’ao090Doe0oco00uououaounooougﬂasooveasaﬁﬁcsq

-report crlﬂclsed counclis fo X

honC s

parking caresw TheT

ide East regeneration and the : 1
: |tar1tage Pa1 K they wan‘th;co cieat

Way forward agreed for Lancaster
Indoor Market Hall

COUNCILLORS have agreed the
next steps to be taken on the
future of the Lancaster indoor
Market Hall, which is due to be
vacated this autumn.

This follows a decision last year
that talks should take place to
negotiate with the council’s
fandlord for the surrender of its
lease, and with the traders for
vacant possession of the market
building by the end of 2012.

Since this decision was taken,
negoatiations have continued with
both Allied, owner of the market
building and the council’s
landlord, and market traders.

While further negotiations need
to take place with Allied to

secure the best possible terms in
respect of the market building,
the council recognises that the
continued uncertainty on the
future of the market has caused
great difficulties for traders.

Councillors therefore agreed
that as a next step, traders shouid
be compensated, with a view to
them leaving the building over
the next few months. it provides
traders with certainty over their
futures and provides for them to
find alternative premises and
keep their businesses running.

This decision was taken
following valuation, legal and
accountancy advice that it was
the best way forward to put the

(e B 1 WL)

clo

o T ST

£ 22 ICDROTORFALBLELECD

council in the best possible
position to safeguard the
interests of taxpayers in the long
term.

Negotiations with Allied -
owner of the market building
and the council's landlord - will
continue,

The outcome of these
negotiations will be brought back
to councillors for further
consideration.




Page 62

W\ Of Q?,.(;CW\\D,Q D§ C,,\';\ (STAY p \C‘u\ \QQ COMM N ci\a)ﬁc;.x

THE HEART

\

One way and another many people who come to
caentral Moracambe arrlve a¢ the western end ef
Central Drive - whather by car, foot, cycle, bus ov
train.

Howaver there is little sense of arrival or direction as to
where to go and what to do. This area Is very much part of
the town centre yet it feels lacking, hollowed out. Here we
need to carve out the basls for a new draw landward of the
seafront. It must attract and hold people, including in poor
weather. The places and routes for pedestrians should connect
well to Victorla Street, surrounding areas and the seafront via

an improved poem path and a refurbished Winter Gardens
Arcade, The Festival Market is part of this. This would
mean ch&hgME FArking here, perhaps narrowing Central
Drive in parts to provide new pamiclng
for the Fastival Market. It would mean change and
redevelopment of land to the rear of the Winter Gardens,
Structuring development to encourage pedestrian

movement and creating good spaces will be ¢ritical. Public
and private investment will be required.

Huch of the excess parking lies along the
(somewhat mis-named) Central Drive, which
also houses the (equally mils-named) Bus

P Brown

Station.

How THIS PART OF T¢ -
Suitable development could siot it

5%
AN

Midiand Hote!

Moreceo r\bg Aetion

3\0«0\

00 potential passing park
stomars e\:‘ar% weok.The |

dly the rnyonaand_
{ ng at from avery angl

. o vight) It is.the Man P_ort 5 renort Ha
' -';;thatinsis sfree' g, or Incontiv

owe N \\h \\kuj\ JQ\\Q, PFUXOLSLM%
Lo SU@ \QCJ CJD(.)L\JC OGS bXd\C&S




PW" \(

e
\mc« ofe
ndo “QL,Q
Morlo b
o lgw
f-:_ ’K‘kxﬁl CCy

af‘cv %w\}\

At the same meetlng at Lan

caster ‘'own Hall, cabinet will
also be asked to rubhex “stamp
plans to-increase some : ‘past

ontrol charges and introduce -

The' cbuncil is: pro;e.ct |
a £I 12%11 ungiezspen fm %li:g

: lderly andv :
91__ 000 on resty uchir'ing sen-
jorcouncil managément over

Disperses peaple

o Mo

g S‘;()CXULS

e

Car parking

sufficient well located, well managed car parking is
essential to any town centre but it should not define the
place. Unfortunately for Morecambe, in the eyes of many It
largely does. The very central part of the town at Central
Drive Is largely given over to car parking. Further, while the
central location of much of the parking is undoubtedly
convenlent the focation of much of It is actually counter to
what is needed to make for the strong and vibrant town
centre that people want. In most successful centres people
park on the edge and walk in. in Morecambe the location of
some of the parking has the opposite effect. People park
and walk out fram these, they disperse and in any one visit
many people perhaps only expertence a very small part of
what Is on offer. This pattern of movement is exacerbated
by the charging regimes for much of the parking - on and
off street — that largely encourages only short stay visits. All
Cohcentrates people this limits pedestrian movements and constrains footfall
and in turn expenditures. 10

1
{\C;K b@ (N b(;’\ok k\n(r\ % \O‘S.CL Lo MO.
For O con e\ oy oq/




-
2

wWae need ko ol

ol an \D,Qr\\%k, —(\

AMB]T[OUS plans’

“revealed ‘for 'a. new. 2,000
_seater entertalnment arena_
cand tncé_oor ifce rink t__the

o . Tightfoot,

ps. - ago, ‘Morecambe now ‘has ' n

-“purpose-built, large anditoriu

S and.we tnnk

_.!__hindrance “to Morecambe
._'weekend festival ambitions,”:

. bluepunt “for”]

'.Frontierland “site

ha °. revolutionise the Polo Tower.
oo Robert ol -Altken,
“International useum_d igm
. ofect  from - Bare, :recently unvei
: “his: vislon for .a.one-ofa
. -themost import development :

for Morecambe in decades™ . . disused former fairground ride.
- “The - InsideLA " " team also oMy Halliday ' sald  InsidelA

0L al - with, Mr'- Altke
- ‘marketing company 21EV, and - schemes happe)
- Lancaster - architec

,"thiee -years  developing ‘their

Page by Llo

(‘\) N C‘u\\}

- ..conoept ale also in talks with '

- gite owners Moyrisons. "
“Thisploposalwouldenhance,.

‘Morecaimbe’s desirability as a .

“<tourist - destination,”. said My

) “With “the “demise

ture . of . The . Dome: g . few | years:

“They. wou]d also have to obtain

‘planning - permission
Jancaster City Cou_n‘ before :
.:"=work could begin; 5 :
A spokesman for

is.is a serious’
oW
~courcil planning : department ;
‘about - “the. fu}tureia use. of the"

the
‘comes |
ot on the -hesls “of - plans fa.,

‘Digital “Tower" to replace ‘the -

_ the Platforin is the town's sole
; would e’ inte1 ested in working: i
o make both
1,000-capacity | forme:
InsideLA, “who have spent'-..:
-City.Cotuicil. -

CR’ OJ.u*

B o

d\Q)vQ/\oP Mi?/\j@ b@ P(g m@;pm\(

The land 15 believed to be
available “for - around - £3m. .

~from

forrisons
- “We - are ' continuing .
discussions with - the

aid

me and. T]_he Carlaton,-f

remaining -puip
entertaimnent { : _
ailway
stationis operated by Lancaster




Agenda ltem 13 Page 65

CABINET

WASTE COLLECTION- Cost Sharing
Oct 9" 2012

Report of Head of Environmental Services

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To seek Cabinet’s agreement for entry into a revised cost sharing agreement with the
County Council from April 1% 2013.

‘ZI Non-Key Decision EI Officer referral ‘ZI
Date Included in Forward Plan [ 26" Sept 2012

This report is public

RECOMMENDATIONS OF HEAD OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

(1) That Lancaster City Council agrees to entry into the revised cost
sharing agreement with the County Council from April 1% 2013.

(2) That Lancaster City Council indicates that it’s preference is to have the
contribution from the cost sharing agreement spread evenly over the 5
year period (Sub-option 1a).

(3) That the Head of Environmental Services informs County of the above
and is delegated to agree the precise operational details of the
agreement.

(4) That budget projections are updated accordingly
1.0 Introduction

1.1 The Lancashire Waste Partnership (LWP) consists of the Lancashire County
Council (waste disposal authority), twelve District Council (waste collection
authorities) and the two unitary authorities.  Through a jointly agreed waste
strategy the LWP has set ambitious targets for managing household waste
produced within the County of Lancashire.

1.2 The Council’s corporate plan includes as an aim delivery of the objectives of the
Lancashire Waste Strategy 2008-2020. This strategy contains challenging
targets for reduction, reuse, recycling and composting of household waste

1.3 In terms of contribution towards implementation of this strategy Lancaster City
Council has over a period of years rolled out waste collection arrangements that



1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

Page 66

contribute significantly to the aims of the LWP waste strategy.

In 2002/3 9.7% of all household waste was recycled / reused / composted. In
2011/12 this figure had risen 41.6%. There is still scope for this figure to rise
much further within existing arrangements.

In order to achieve this the City Council has invested significantly. Compared
with other similar Authorities the City Council performance is in the top quartile
for its low cost of waste collection / recycling per household (based on APSE
Performance Networks comparative data).

The required investment has come through a variety of sources. Particularly
relevant to this report is the contribution Lancashire County Council provides
through its cost sharing agreement.

The current cost sharing agreement is due to end in 2013/14. Under the
agreement the County Council provides an amount for every household that is
provided with the waste collection / recycling arrangements that the City Council
currently has in place. The value of this contribution to Lancaster City Council in
2012/13 is £1,283,600.

In the years since the introduction of the cost sharing agreement the economic
situation has changed considerably. Local Authorities are under huge pressure
to reduce budgets. In 2012/13 the County Council expects to spend across the
County over £94million on waste recovery / disposal. Lancaster City Council
expects to spend £3.1million on waste collection.

Through the LWP the County Council have discussed ways of providing revised
options for cost sharing that meet the County Council’s budget arrangements
but also attempt to mitigate the financial impact on District Councils.

1.10 An offer has now been formally received from the County Council.

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

Proposal Details
The County Council is essentially proposing the following-

PROPOSAL- To accept a revised cost sharing agreement from 2012/13 (one
year ahead of the termination of the current arrangement). This agreement
would provide the City Council with a contribution of £6,099,594 over a 5 year
period from April 2013. The amount also includes payments for loss of recycling
income as are currently provided. The amount offered is less than the amount
offered under the current agreement. Two sub-options are presented to provide
choice as to the contribution is received. Sub- option 1a sees the contribution
spread equally over the over the 5 year period. In 2012 /13 this option would
mean that approximately £104,000 extra savings would have to be made by the
Council. Sub- option 1b sees the contribution front loaded in profile. Based on
the financial appraisal (see financial implications) it appears that Sub-option 1a
would be the easier option to manage.

Acceptance of the cost sharing agreement requires a commitment to provide at
least 90% of households with three- stream waste collection arrangements
(which Lancaster City Council has already achieved). Increasing of collection
frequencies of residual waste (grey bins) to less than fortnightly would not be
acceptable. If the City Council wishes to accept the County Council have



Page 67

requested for budgeting purposes that we inform them by October 31°.

2.4 If the City Council does not wish to accept the revised offer it would remain
within the current cost sharing agreement until its end in 2013/14. At this point
there is no indication that any further financial support would be provided by the
County Council.  In theory this would allow Lancaster City Council greater
freedom as to collection arrangements eg reintroduction of weekly grey bin
collections. In practice the combined cost of the loss of cost sharing (£1.2million
/ year) and the increased cost of reintroduction of weekly bin collections (£1- 1.5
million / year) would make this option unrealistic from a financial perspective. It
would also be contrary to the aims of the Council’s corporate plan.

3.0 Details of Consultation

3.1 Following discussions through the LWP. The County Council have formally
written to all Districts and requested a view on each Districts preferred option
by 31% October 2012. This will allow for certainty in terms of financial
planning.

4.0 Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment)

4.1 Essentially there are two choices-

e Accept the revised cost sharing agreement

o Not accept the revised cost sharing agreement

4.2 For the reasons outlined above the only realistic option is to accept the County
Council’s proposal of entry into a revised cost sharing agreement from April 1% 2013.
The most preferable sub-option from both an operational and financial perspective is
to accept the contribution spread equally over the 5 year period of the agreement
(Sub — option 1a).

5.0 Officer Preferred Option (and comments)
5.1 As set out above.

6.0 Conclusion

6.1 The report seeks Cabinet’'s approval to enter into a revised cost sharing
agreement from April 1% 2013.

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK
As set out in the report

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural
Proofing)

Waste collection / recycling is provided to all households in the District and is a statutory
service



Page 68

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

None

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The 2012/13 General Fund Budget as approved by Council on 29" February 2012 includes
the following amounts in relation to cost sharing income :-

2012/13 £1,284K
2013/14 £1,323K
2014/15 £1,366K

Under the existing arrangements, the annual amount is currently subject to inflationary
increases in line with the Retail Price Index forecast (RPI) at the time the budget is set.
County Council’s proposed contribution of £6,099,594 over the five years commencing 1%
April 2013 is a flat amount and as such will not be subject to any inflationary increase.
Therefore, the will place additional pressure on the general fund budget. The following table
illustrates the financial impact (where known) of each of the options and for the purpose of
the exercise inflation has been assumed to continue in future years of the approved budget.

Year1 Year2 Year3 Year4 Year5
2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
£K £K £K £K £K

Latest Approved Budget 1,323 1,366 1,409 1,452 1,495
ACCEPT REVISED COST SHARING AGREEMENT

Sub- Option 1a (spread equal)

Proposed Contribution 1,220 1,220 1,220 1,220 1,220

Budgetary Shortfall 103 146 189 232 275

Sub -Option 1b (front loaded)
Proposed Contribution 1,267 1,244 1,220

Budgetary Shortfall 56 122 189
DON’T ACCEPT REVISED COST SHARING AGREEMENT
Proposed Contribution 1,323 ?? ?7?

Budgetary Shortfall 0 ?? ??

Whilst the table illustrates option 1b is more attractive than option 1a in the short term, the
later years see a decrease to the contribution. Over the duration of the five years the
shortfall is identical and due to its consistent nature, option 1a would be easier to manage
and assist officers in more effective budgetary planning.

Non acceptance of the revised cost sharing agreement sees no budgetary shortfall in
2013/14 however the future implications of not accepting are unquantifiable at this point in
time but it is generally accepted that this would have a detrimental impact both operationally
and financially.




Page 69

Whichever option Cabinet decides to pursue, the associated budgets will be updated as part
of the forthcoming budget process.

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Human Resources:
None

Information Services:
None

Property:
None

Open Spaces:
None

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The report sets out the position regarding financial risk associated with accepting or not
accepting the revised cost sharing proposals. Not accepting the proposal would provide
continuity of the current agreement and existing funding levels for a further year, but it
provides no certainty for the funding position beyond 2013/14. Accepting the proposals will
require the Council to consider potential savings and efficiencies as part of the forthcoming
MTFS and budget review, but this option provides a clearer and less risky picture for the
future.

Within the overall 5 year proposals, instalment sub-option 1a provides for greater stability in
ear operational and financial planning.

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The deputy monitoring officer has been consulted and has no observations to make on this
report.

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Mark Davies
Telephone: 01524 582401

Letter to Chief Executive from County || E-mail: mdavies @lancaster.gov.uk

Council 19" Sept 2012 Ref:




Page 70 Agenda Iltem 14

CABINET

Council Housing Rota Painting
9'™" Oct 2012

Report of Head of Environmental Services

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To outline options for the way the rota painting of Council houses is undertaken and request
an ‘in principle decision’.

Key Decision Non-Key Decision Referral from Cabinet
Member

Date Included in Forward Plan }| Aug 2012

This report is public.
Appendix A is exempt from publication by virtue of paragraph 3, of Schedule 12a of
the Local Government Act 1972

RECOMMENDATIONS OF COUNCILLOR DAVID SMITH
(1) That the rota painting contract for Council Housing is not retendered.

(2) That in order to deliver the service an in principle decision is taken to
deliver in-house via expansion of the Council’s repairs and maintenance
team.

(3) In taking this decision the assumption is made that the service can be
delivered at less than the amount currently budgeted and to a suitable
level of service. Otherwise a further report will be brought back to
Cabinet.

(4) That the Cabinet Member with responsibility for Environmental Services
monitors the performance of the in-house service via the quarterly
Performance Review Meetings for the service area.

1.0 Introduction

1.1 Rota painting is the term used to describe a range of cyclical maintenance jobs
that are carried out on Council houses to ensure they are well maintained.
These tasks include painting (external / communal areas), cleaning of upvc
joinery etc.

1.2 The Council currently has in place a partnering arrangement for the delivery of
this work on Council houses. All Council housing properties are painted etc to
the specified standard over a six year period.



1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

2.6

Page 71

The partnering arrangement is due to end on March 31% 2013.

At the time it was agreed that delivering the service in this way would be the
most effective and efficient way of delivering this programme of works.

The last 18 months or so have seen a number of significant changes in the way
the Council’s approach to delivery of repairs and maintenance. The aim of these
changes is to ensure that the service is delivered in a way that best meets the
needs of both the Council and its tenants. This programme of change is still very
much a work in progress and is focussing not just on improving systems,
processes and working practices but also on changing the culture within the
service.

At this stage what has been identified is that in order to make improvements in
critical areas like decreasing the time taken to turnover void properties greater
flexibility in terms of use of staff is required. The fact that the Council delivers
some of its works via an in-house team and some via partners / contractors
whilst being advantageous in some respects does cause significant problems in
terms of operational flexibility.

As the partnering arrangement for rota painting is due to end in March 31° 2013
this does present an opportunity to reassess how we deliver the service.

Proposal Details

It is essential that the scheduled rota painting works continue as this will
maintain the Council’s housing stock.

It is not essential that the works continue to be delivered by a third party
through a contract or partnership arrangement.

Another option would be to not undertake a tendering exercise and instead
deliver the service directly through expansion of the existing in-house team,
utilising the budget that is currently allocated to the Council’s rota painting
partner. This option would provide for much greater operational flexibility and
control, and potentially provide an apprenticeship opportunity.

Initial work shows that the current level of service could be delivered within the
existing rota painting budget. At this stage an ‘in principle’ decision on Cabinet’s
preferred option is requested. Once this has been made a fully detailed plan for
delivery of the service will be developed which will clearly identify the levels of
service, budgetary requirement, and desired outcomes. As is the case for any
Council service performance management measures would be clearly defined
to ensure value for money and quality of service. The intention of this approach
would be to design and deliver a suitable level of service within the existing
budget for rota painting. The level of service to be delivered would be agreed
with relevant stakeholders, including tenant representatives.

If it became apparent that for some unforeseen reason it was not possible to
achieve this then a further report would be brought back to Cabinet.

As mentioned in para 2.4 ensuring value for money is essential for the repairs
and maintenance, as indeed it is for any Council service. Within the repairs and



2.7

2.8

3.0

3.1

Page 72

maintenance service value for money is established via a number of means
including benchmarking, direct comparison with other providers, tendering
exercises for certain services, tenant satisfaction surveys etc. To allow for any
meaningful demonstration of value for money actual costs of the various
functions provided by repairs and maintenance need to be accurately
apportioned. As part of the programme of change referred to in para 1.5 work is
taking place to ensure that budgets reflect accurately the levels of service that
are provided across the functional areas.

As well as this, were the service to be delivered ‘in-house’ this would certainly
create, at least initially, additional work in terms of ensuring the in-house team
was fully staffed and trained, and were provided with the appropriate materials,
equipment and vehicles etc.

Achieving this would require input from a number of services and as part of the
delivery plan referred to in para 2.4 the capacity required to make the initial
change would need to be considered and factored into the initial costs.

Details of Consultation

Subject to Cabinet’s preferred option it may be that TUPE applies. In which case
consultation would take place with affected staff and their representatives.
Consultation would also take place with relevant stakeholders including tenant
representatives.

4.0 Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment)
Option 1: Deliver rota painting | Option 2: Seek an ‘in principle
via 3 party — through a | decision’ to develop a business
tendering exercise plan to deliver rota painting directly
via expansion of the Council’s in-
house team
Advantages ¢ Once tendered requires e Increased flexibility
less ongoing e Increased control
management input. e Ability to align more with
corporate objectives (eg
apprenticeships)

o Consistent with objectives
of the RMS change
programme

o Wil be delivered within
existing budgets

Disadvantages ¢ Reduction in flexibility e Requires more ongoing
e Reduction in control management input

o Requires significant initial
input from a number of
Council services to ensure
the transition goes as
intended.

Risks e TUPE may apply e Detailed business case
e A tendering exercise may identify some




Page 73

may result in an unforeseen issues
increase in costs

5.0 Officer Preferred Option (and comments)

5.1 Changing the means of delivering the service will generate, at least initially,
significant extra work. However, within the context of the change programme that is
underway the effort involved will result in sustained improvements. Therefore, the
officer preferred option is Option 2.

6.0 Conclusion

6.1 The report outlines options for the delivery of the rota painting programme.

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK
The Council has its own Council Housing stock which it has a duty to maintain.

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural
Proofing)

Provision of the service contributes to ensuring the Council’s housing stock is maintained to
a suitable standard.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

Legal to advise on all contractual procedures in relation to this matter

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The annual planned maintenance revenue programme includes £320K for the delivery of
rota painting under the existing arrangements which are due to end on 31%' March 2013.
Although the management of RMS is primarily a general fund function its cost is ultimately
recharged to the housing revenue account.

This report seeks direction on how Members wish to address the future delivery of rota
painting and therefore they need to be mindful of the two options available :-

Option 1 — to continue to deliver rota painting through a third party. This will require a full
tendering exercise of which the costs are unquantifiable at this point in time. However,
should the costs exceed the current budgets then it may require a revision to the tender
specification document in order to reduce costs.

Option 2 — to explore the delivery of rota painting internally by the expansion of the in-house
team. An initial financial appraisal has been included as Appendix A. Whilst it should be
noted that this is an initial appraisal, the estimated cost of the internal team is significantly
below the budgeted contribution resulting in savings of £120K which could be utilised
elsewhere in the delivery of planned maintenance throughout the district. A further full
financial appraisal is required to support its validity and therefore an in-principle decision is
sought for this option.




Page 74

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Human Resources:
As outlined in the report

Information Services:
None

Property:
As outlined in the report

Open Spaces:
None

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS

Should Cabinet approve Option 2, a key part of the work involved would be to ensure
appropriate costing / VFM arrangements as referred to in paragraphs 2.4 and 2.6. These
aspects would be addressed in determining any new in-house service set up. If they cannot
be adequately addressed, a further report would be brought back to Cabinet (as reflected in
the recommendations).

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Mark Davies
Telephone: 01524 582401
E-mail: mdavies@lancaster.gov.uk
Ref:




Page 75

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 76 Agenda Item 16

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



	Agenda
	6 Museums Service
	7 Performance Reward Grant Funding
	Appendix - Overview of Affordable Warmth Improvement Programme

	8 Storey Creative Industries Centre
	9 Service Level Agreement Storey Gallery
	10 Corporate Plan 2012-15 - Half Yearly Monitoring at September 2012
	Corporate Plan Actions - Sept 2012 Appendix A

	11 Budget and Planning Process 2013/14
	App A BPF Cabinet Timetable 091012

	12 Morecambe Festival Market
	Festival mkt appen A

	13 Waste Collection - Cost Sharing
	14 Council Housing - Rota Painting
	Rota Painting Appendix A

	16 Community Development Initiative

